A G E N DA

.

HEREFORDSHIRE
COUNCIL

Strategic
Monitoring
Committee

Date: Wednesday, 12th January, 2005
Time: 10.00 a.m.
~ The Council Chamber,
Place:  Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford
Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of

the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Tim Brown, Members' Services, tel 01432
260239

e-mail tbrown@herefordshire.gov.uk

County of Herefordshire
District Council






COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 12TH JANUARY, 2005

AGENDA

for the Meeting of the Strategic Monitoring
Committee

To: Councillor T.M. James (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs. P.A. Andrews (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors B.F. Ashton, W.L.S. Bowen, A.C.R. Chappell, J.H.R. Goodwin,
Mrs. M.D. Lloyd-Hayes, J. Stone, J.P. Thomas and W.J.S. Thomas

Pages

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence.
2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on
this agenda.

3. MINUTES 1-2

To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 4th November,
2004

4, REVIEW OF SUPPORT TO THE VOLUNTARY SECTOR 3-72

To consider the outcome of the review of support to the Voluntary Sector.







PUBLIC INFORMATION
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Education,
Environment, Health, Social Care and Housing and Social and Economic
Development. A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises Policy and
Finance matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees.

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and
transparency of the Council's decision making process.

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to
e Help in developing Council policy

e Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions before
and after decisions are taken

e Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised by
the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public

e "call in" decisions - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further
scrutiny.

e Review performance of the Council

e Conduct Best Value reviews

o Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public

Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information on

your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out
overleaf



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at
Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

e Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

e Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the
meeting.

¢ Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to
six years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up
to four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a
report is given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available
to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and
Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access,
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy
documents.



Please Note:

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large
print. Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal
with your request.

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available.

A public telephone is available in the reception area.

Public Transport Links

e Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs
approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper bus station at the Tesco store in
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street /
Edgar Street).

e The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction
with Hafod Road. The return journey can be made from the same bus stop.

If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above,
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford.



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at
the southern entrance to the car park. A check will be undertaken
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the
building following which further instructions will be given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of
the exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning
to collect coats or other personal belongings.



AGENDA ITEM 3

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Strategic Monitoring
Committee held at The Council Chamber, Brockington on
Thursday, 4th November, 2004 at 3.10 p.m.

Present: Councillor T.M. James (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs. P.A. Andrews (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors: B.F. Ashton, W.L.S. Bowen, J.H.R. Goodwin, J.P. Thomas
and W.J.S. Thomas

In attendance: Councillors P.J. Edwards, Mrs. J.P. French, P.E. Harling, G.V. Hyde,
R.l. Matthews, R.J. Phillips, R.V. Stockton, D.B. Wilcox and
R.M. Wilson

35. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors A.C.R Chappell, Mrs M.D. Lloyd-Hayes
and J. Stone.

36. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

37. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15th October, 2004 be
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED: That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 th
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of
business on the grounds that it involved disclosure of terms
proposed or to be proposed by or to the Authority in the course
of negotiations for a contract for the acquisition or disposal of
property or the supply of goods or services.

38. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY REVIEW

The Committee considered the report by the Property Management Review Group
on the Council’s Property Holding and Property Services.

The Group had submitted a report to the Committee in July and had been requested
to prepare a more detailed report including the evidence and analysis which had
informed the Group’s recommendations. It was considered that this would provide
greater assistance to the Executive in determining what action it wished to take in
response to the review’s findings.




STRATEGIC MONITORING COMMITTEE THURSDAY, 4TH NOVEMBER, 2004

The Chief Executive advised that the revised report provided a framework which
would assist the Executive. Given the scope and complexity of the review, it would
always be possible to put forward suggestions as to where it might be better
reasoned or where further work might be undertaken but it was felt that the point had
now been reached where further work would simply delay the consideration of what
were very significant recommendations by the Executive.

The Executive welcomed the report and acknowledged the scale and complexity of
the review. It was reiterated that it would be helpful to analyse the lessons which
could be learned from the review to inform future reviews.

RESOLVED: That the findings of the review of the Council’s Property holding

and Property Services as set out in its report be recommended
to Cabinet.

The meeting ended at 3.28 p.m. CHAIRMAN



AGENDA ITEM 4

STRATEGIC MONITORING COMMITTEE 12TH JANUARY, 2005

REVIEW OF SUPPORT TO THE VOLUNTARY SECTOR
Report By: Director of Policy and Community

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To consider the outcome of the review of support to the Voluntary Sector.

Financial Implications

These would depend on the extent to which reductions in this area are required by
the Budget Panel.

Background

When the Council was established in 1998 the Voluntary Sector grant regimes of the
outgoing authorities were brought together and some work was undertaken to try to
achieve consistency in application and approach. In broad terms there is direct
support in excess of £500,000 made available to the Voluntary Sector through a
combination of “one off’ grants and service level agreements. The Council has
protected this sum and uprated it for inflation.

Over the period since 1998 there has been a move towards longer term funding
arrangements with a number of organisations being designated as “strategic”. These
fall across the work of the Council and into a number of categories e.g. Arts, Youth,
General Support agencies. In making this move the sums channelled through SLAs
now total approximately £360,000 and “one off” grants £165,000.

The review of support to the Voluntary Sector was most recently considered by the
Strategic Monitoring Committee at its meeting on 9th February, 2004. It built on
earlier work commenced in the Social and Economic Development Scrutiny
Committee because the majority of grants are distributed through the Policy and
Community Directorate.

The scope of the review is set out in Appendix 1 and the full review report is attached
as Appendix 2.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the recommendations as set out in the Executive Summary of the review
of Council support to the community and voluntary sector be approved and
forwarded to Cabinet for consideration and also made available to the Budget
Panel.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Jane Jones, Director of Policy and Community

on 01432 260037

ReviewofsupporttoVSfin0.doc 3







APPENDIX 1
Scope of the Review

e Review the services provided by the main Infrastructure organisations.
This will include bodies such as Community First, Herefordshire
Voluntary Action, Ledbury Voluntary Action, HCCA, Citizen’s Advice
Bureaux, HCVYS and those not for profit organisations with whom the
Council has Service Level Agreements (SLAs).

e Contrast the differences between services provided both from direct grant
awards and through SLAs to help form a view on value for money from these
different arrangements. Establish guidelines when it would be appropriate to
use either funding mechanism. This will consider the implications for levering
in additional funding, and agreeing the basis for calculating management
costs.

e Examine the current management arrangements for the operation of the
Voluntary Sector Grants scheme. The Review will involve the Voluntary
Sector with particular reference to consistent application forms, criteria for
grants, long term project sustainability without on-going grant awards,
policies, priorities, and procedures including decision making arrangements.

e Establish clear and consistent monitoring arrangements of Voluntary Sector
Grant awards and SLAs throughout the Council.

e Investigate the added value implications of whether services currently
supported by grant awards are better provided in-house or if existing in-house
services might be better provided by the Voluntary Sector.

e Detail the overall funding made available to the Voluntary Sector by the
Council, and will include in kind contributions. Grants related to direct social

services care will not be covered by the Review.

e Compare the extent of Voluntary Sector Grant support and the way it operates
in Herefordshire against our Benchmarking Authorities.

e Undertake a literature search to identify models of Best Practice.

e Funding for the Voluntary Sector from third party sources such as Single
Regeneration Budget or Objective 2 funding will not be covered by the
Review.

e Funding support for Parish Councils will not be covered by the Review.

e Consider support arrangements for the Voluntary Sector Assembly.

e Recommend options for Voluntary Sector Grant support in the future.






APPENDIX 2

REVIEW OF HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL SUPPORT TO THE
COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTARY SECTOR

NOVEMBER 2004

. X

HEREFORDSHIRE
COUNCIL



CONTENTS

Page

I ES] o N o =T o [Ty S 3
Executive Summary - Recommendations..............oovuiiiiiiiiiiiciicceee e 4
1] (oo 18 o3 1o o S 7
3.1 Background to the REVIEW ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 7
3.2  ScOpe Of thE REVIEW ... 7
3.3  Conduct Of the REVIEW .......cooiiiiiieee e 7
K € 1= o 1=t | I ES ST UL PP 10
Voluntary Sector Grants SCheEmME ...........oooviiiiii i 13
Service Level AgreementS.........ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 16
Infrastructure Organisations ... 19
6.7 Community Voluntary Action Ledbury and District.............ccccoviiiieen 20
6.8 Herefordshire Voluntary ACON .............uueeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies 21
6.9 Community First.....cooooii e 22
6.10 Herefordshire Association of Local Councils..............ccccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiciiieeeeeee 24
6.11 Herefordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services ...........cccccvvviieeene. 25
Gt 1 N I I L 27
6.13  Citizens AdVICe BUMAUX ..........ceeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eees 28
6.14  Voluntary Sector ASSEMDIY .........oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 31
6.15  COMMON ISSUES .....uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s nennnnnnnnnnnnnnnes 32
(@70] o T3 U1 1] o 1< 0 ESPRPRR 36
Review of Herefordshire Council Support

to the Community and Voluntary Sector: Funding Challenges ...........cccccceeeeiiiinnnnnns 37



LIST OF APPENDICES

Page

Strategic Monitoring Committee Report 9" February 2004 ..........cccccoeveeeeen., 39
(including Social and Economic Development Scrutiny

Committee: Terms of Reference 17" March 2003)

Review Team Membership .........cooi oo e e 43
SCOPE OF thE REVIEW .....eeeeeeeeeee e 44
Benchmarking Results Table ... 46
Benchmarking Results Table (Infrastructure Organisations)...............ccccceeiinnnns 47
Total Baseline Support by OrganiSation..................eeueveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeiieeeaneees 49
Interviews held with Council OffiCers.......... ... 52
Interviews held with Infrastructure Organisations..............cccoooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee, 53
Standard Council Officers Questionnaire ..............cccccviiii 54
Voluntary Sector Grants Scheme Awards 2002 —2004 .........cccooeevvieiiiieicineeeenn. 56
Voluntary Sector Grants Scheme Criteria ..........ccccoooviiiiiiiiiiiieieeee e 58
Proposed SLA CheckKIiSt ..........uuuiiiiiiece e 59
Service Level Agreements - TIMeSCales ..........cooovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee 63
Service Level Agreements - Infrastructure Organisations.................cccc. 64
Service Level Agreements - Other Organisations ..............ooovviiiieiiieiiiieiiin. 65



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Recommendations

General

1.

That support to the Community and Voluntary sector should be properly recorded
where officers complete individual work programmes and time recording sheets.

That market testing of service options be considered or takes place in appropriate
service areas.

That a Council Community and Voluntary Sector support strategy be drawn up and
adopted as soon as possible.

That individual Council Departments examine the scope for including the Community
and Voluntary Sector in achieving their strategies’ objectives.

Voluntary Sector Grants

5.

6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

That the current funding by percentage guideline allocations be discontinued.

That the current two annual bidding rounds be replaced by a single bidding round.
Alternatively, that voluntary sector grant applications be made on a rolling basis and
considered at quarterly intervals.

That funding for more than one year should not be provided by grants but through
Service Level Agreements where appropriate.

That grant applications be considered on merit against criteria, which have been
revisited, strengthened and made more transparent.

That once the grant criteria have been revised the allocation of grants be delegated
to officers, with the relevant Cabinet Member being consulted, along with the local
Member where appropriate, in line with best practice of similar grant schemes
operated by Herefordshire Council.

That the Voluntary Grants Scheme monitoring system be made more robust to
facilitate a detailed evaluation of the effective use of grant funding, and its impact on
Herefordshire and its residents.

That individual managers be made responsible for monitoring the satisfactory
performance of grants relating to their service areas. That grants be conditional and
only given in return for agreeing to meet a range of responsibilities.

That a limited amount of funding, to be agreed by the Cabinet Member, be ringfenced
for the areas of greatest need within Herefordshire as measured by the Index of
Multiple Deprivation Super Output Areas.

That funding be conditional upon the organisation in receipt of a grant having

diversity and equal opportunities policies in place, which are acceptable to
Herefordshire Council.

10



14.

That an appraisal panel replace the practice of single officer appraisal of grant
applications.

Service Level Agreements

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

It is recommended that SLAs be established with organisations that receive
significant support (such as Age Concern), but that this be reviewed once the CVS
support strategy has been approved.

That Service Level Agreements be made more specific and linked to required and
measurable outputs and outcomes.

That clear and robust criteria be introduced against which Service Level Agreements
should be monitored.

That any new or renewed Service Level Agreements be drawn up using the checklist
of headings and guidance as outlined in this report.

That rolling Service Level Agreements should not routinely be entered into, but be
used where this is appropriate.

Infrastructure Organisations

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

That the Council endorses Community and Voluntary services continuing to be
provided locally.

That funding for Community Voluntary Action Ledbury & District be withdrawn at the
conclusion of the existing Service Level Agreement on the 31 March 2005, as there
is no economic justification for supporting Community Voluntary Action Ledbury &
District as a separate organisation.

That such notice to Community Voluntary Action Ledbury & District be given as early
as possible.

That no more projects be awarded to Community First without a competitive
tendering exercise taking place, and that this should apply to existing projects where
the appropriate notice can be given.

That Herefordshire Association of Local Councils be warned of the implications of not
meeting their Service Level Agreement monitoring requirements. In the event that
Herefordshire Association of Local Councils fails to provide the monitoring information
as outlined in the Service Level Agreement action be taken to terminate the Service
Level Agreement.

That the Compact agreement between the PCT, the Social Care and Strategic
Housing Directorate (the Council) and the Alliance should be reviewed according to
the terms in the COMPACT and by the Joint Health and Social Care Commissioning
Group.

That collaborative working arrangements be pursued with Citizens Advice Bureaux,

ABLE and Welfare Rights Team, but if this is not achievable that the Welfare Rights
Team service be market tested,

11



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

That the Council continues to fund Citizens Advice Bureaux at least at existing levels
whilst the option of partnership working with ABLE and the Welfare Rights Team are
explored in more detail.

That suitable parcels of work involving community activity be tendered, such as
community surveys or activities along the lines of Planning for Real exercises.

That the Race Equality Partnership be asked to consider the transfer of the service to
the Community and Voluntary Sector. This can probably be best achieved by
commissioning the activity with an individual Infrastructure organisation, or
undertaking a market testing exercise.

That the Strategic Housing Department places more of a rural focus into the job
description of one of its current Housing Officers.

That the Herefordshire Council Lifelong Learning Development Unit considers the
scope for using the Community and Voluntary Sector to deliver a larger proportion of
adult learning activity.

That some services be considered for market testing either for provision by the
Community and Voluntary Sector or to be retained in-house. These are:

e Work that involves going out into the community.

e Parish plans consultation.
e Community Development Co-ordinator.

12



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.2

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

INTRODUCTION

Background to the review

In March 2003 Herefordshire Council’s Social and Economic Development
Scrutiny Committee agreed terms of reference for a review of support to the
Community and Voluntary Sector (CVS) provided by Herefordshire Council.
Some data collection work was subsequently undertaken, but the review work
was not progressed. This was largely because of other work pressures as a
result of unavoidable staff changes.

On 9" February 2004 the Strategic Monitoring Committee agreed that a review
of CVS support be undertaken, using graduate placements. (See Appendix 1).
A subsequent detailed scoping exercise highlighted that the work required was
much more demanding than originally envisaged and beyond the experience of
the graduate placements. It was also unlikely to be completed in the time
available to them. Consequently in early April 2004 the task was assigned to a
Review Team comprising Members and Council officers. (The membership of
the Review Team is detailed in Appendix 2).

Three officers from the Review Team (led by Glyn West, with support from
Catherine Winsor and Ed Hughes) undertook much of the detailed work, with
support from Annie Brookes as the Community Regeneration contact. Other
Review Team members made significant contributions in specific areas.

Scope of the Review

The scope of the review is detailed in Appendix 3. From the outset it was
necessary to limit the areas to be reviewed, e.g. by excluding personal social
care, as some of the areas are to be examined by separate Best Value reviews.
In addition the review excluded funding for the CVS from third party sources
such as European funding or Single Regeneration Budgets. During the course of
the review we excluded recycling and community transport, as these areas
provide a contractual benefit to the Council and not the CVS; the Courtyard, as it
is the subject of a separate review; and Halo Leisure Trust, as it is not
considered strictly a Voluntary or Community organisation within the scope of
this review.

Conduct of the Review

The Review Team gathered large amounts of data to establish a baseline
position, which included an extensive benchmarking exercise. The term
benchmarking has many definitions. At its widest it is concerned with making
informal comparisons and borrowing good practice. However, benchmarking
can also be a specific performance improvement tool and a way of measuring
services against the best in the field.

It was clear from the outset that it would not be possible to make exact like for
like comparisons between Local Authorities. This was because some Local
Authorities provide services directly rather than using the CVS, or in some cases
do not fund a particular activity at all. A number of Local Authorities were unable
to provide the complete data required, and in some cases they were unable to

7

13



3.3.3

3.34

3.3.5

3.3.6

break down figures in the way we required them. The information obtained was
however robust enough to allow us to reach some general conclusions as to the
extent of CVS support provided by Herefordshire Council in comparison to other
Local Authorities. This suggests that the Council is relatively generous in its
support of the CVS when compared to a number of similar rural Local
Authorities. Fuller benchmarking details can be found in Appendices 4 and 5.

The Review Team initially sent a questionnaire to the New Unitaries
Benchmarking Group, to enable the Council’s support of the CVS to be
compared against other Authorities.

Herefordshire Council is a member of the New Unitaries Benchmarking Group,
which comprises 10 Unitary Authorities that share similar characteristics. It was
hoped this group would give the best comparable data.

In April 2004, a questionnaire and a copy of the scope of the review was sent to
named contacts at the 9 other Councils that are members of the group: These
were:

Bath & North East Somerset North Somerset
Darlington South Gloucestershire
East Riding of Yorkshire Telford & Wrekin

Isle of Wight West Berkshire

North Lincolnshire

Follow up emails were sent in May, but only four replies were received from the
group.

In June the Review Team decided to widen the survey to the following rural
Council areas:

Cornwall Northumberland
Cumbria Powys

Devon Shropshire
Dorset Worcestershire

Monmouthshire

A total of 50 County, Local, District & Borough Councils, and Unitary Authorities
were subsequently sent a copy of the questionnaire. Disappointingly only a
further 8 responses were received. A table showing the results received can be
found in Appendix 4.

The Review Team recognised from the outset that it would be difficult to produce
like for like comparable data. The reasons for this include:

e Some Authorities were only able to provide partial questionnaire returns.

e Authorities do not have the same pattern of services, with more services
provided in-house than Herefordshire Council.

e Some of the information could not be broken down to separate grant support
to the voluntary sector from other grant support to the Business sector.

e The definition of what constitutes in-kind support has been the subject of on-
going debate and interpretation.

8

14



3.3.7

3.3.8

3.3.9

3.3.10

3.3.11

3.3.12

3.3.13

Nevertheless the Review Team was able to reach general conclusions. We
consider that Herefordshire Council is generous in the support it gives to the
CVS. We recognise that these sectors are less developed elsewhere and this
has an impact on the level of support given. Based on this limited comparative
data we have concluded there is no overwhelming case for Herefordshire
Council to provide extra resources to the CVS.

As the review progressed the Review Team then drew up a simple
questionnaire to specifically look at levels of funding for infrastructure
organisations, in an attempt to benchmark Herefordshire Council’'s performance
in this area. This was sent to all of the 59 Councils, who were questioned
previously. The simpler type of questionnaire produced a greater response rate.
A table showing the results received can be found in Appendix 5.

Heads of Service and Service Managers across the Authority were asked
whether they provided any support to the VCS from their Council budgets, within
the scope of the review. Support was defined as specific grants, Service Level
Agreements (SLAs) (not including statutory provision) and any in-kind
assistance (such as free or subsidised use of accommodation). Estimates of
Council officer time spent monitoring and supporting the CVS have been
included in the table of support (Appendix 6). However, Infrastructure
organisations felt the total funding figure was not wholly support given to them,
but included the administration cost of monitoring their Service Level
Agreements. They argued that time spent meeting the Council’s monitoring
requirements gave them less time to deliver services. There was empathy for
this view from a number of Council officers interviewed.

The Review Team has based Council officer support costs on their existing
grades and salaries. These will of course be subject to change as a result of the
job evaluation exercise, but for the purposes of the Review existing salaries
have been used.

Smaller amounts are not shown in detail in this table (except business rate
relief), and usually relate to support including reduced room hire rates,
photocopying, expenses, officer advice and free publicity. The sum total of this
support amounted to £2,244, and is included, but listed as a de minimis item.

The wider Review Team met on five occasions to consider progress, to agree
the further work required and to approve recommendations for the final report.
Three meetings were also held with the elected Members on the Review Team
to report on activities, to seek views on provisional findings and to secure
support for the report's recommendations. Records were kept of all these
discussions.

The review itself was crosscutting in nature, and involved holding semi-
structured interviews with appropriate Council officers, Managers, Heads of
Service and Directors. In addition semi-structured interviews were held with
representatives of most of the Infrastructure Bodies, along with key CVS
organisations that receive substantial Council funding. In total some 42
interviews took place over a 7-month period (see Appendices 7 and 8). Standard

15



3.3.14

3.3.15

3.4

3.4.1

questionnaires were sent in advance to obtain specific information and to allow
Infrastructure organisations an opportunity to consider their responses.

Officers identified as providing CVS support had a monetary estimate calculated
for their time involved. They were sent a standard questionnaire to gather
detailed information on the support they provided. They were challenged over
the effectiveness of their monitoring activities, and questioned over policies and
procedures surrounding the Council’'s support to the CVS. A copy of the
standard questionnaire is shown at Appendix 9. On receipt of their responses,
the Review Team decided if a one-to-one interview with the officer was required
to discuss their answers in more detail. It was not necessary to interview some
officers, as their support was minimal or their answers were straightforward.
When a structured interview was held with an officer, a further individual list of
questions was drawn up based on the officer's original response to the
questionnaire. During the discussions further standard questions were raised to
ensure a degree of consistency in approach. Once again records were kept of
all these discussions.

A meeting was held at the outset with infrastructure organisation representatives
to outline the scope of the review and to set out how the review would be
conducted. It allowed us to hear their initial concerns and in some cases to
modify our approach to address those issues. It was initially hoped to hold a
further meeting with the infrastructure organisation representatives to share our
draft findings. Unfortunately there was insufficient time to do this. Infrastructure
organisations were therefore asked to confirm the accuracy of our factual data.

General issues

The CVS plays a vital role in Herefordshire. The Review Team literature survey
identified a number of Government initiatives to encourage the expansion the
role of the CVS. As an example Futurebuilders is a new £125 million
Government investment fund for England, backed by the Home Office which
aims to increase the role that the CVS plays in the delivery of public services.
The Review Team agrees that everyone has a role to play in building strong,
active communities. The National Council for Voluntary Organisations has
pointed to a change in the relationship between Government and the CVS,
which is particularly evident in the Government’s approach to public service
delivery, and the role that the CVS can play in delivering services. The
Government has identified the sector as having a vital link to socially excluded
communities because they have developed trust by filling the gaps between
mainstream services. A number of trends are emerging, such as:

Increasing demand for services and rising expectations

Importance of choice and quality

The emphasis on local public service delivery and user involvement
Prevalence of performance management and improved accountability
Strengthened competition amongst service providers

Polarisation of the sector between those that deliver public services and
those that do not, and between large charities and smaller organisations

The Review Team acknowledges these pressures, and welcomes the
opportunity for the CVS to play a greater role in service delivery in

10

16



3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.4.6

3.4.7

Herefordshire. That said, we do not consider Herefordshire Council can continue
to be the first port of call for additional funding for the CVS. We believe the
majority of CVS organisations will need to diversify their income streams so as
not to depend so extensively on Herefordshire Council funding.

The Government has set a target to improve public service efficiency by 2.5% a
year from April 2005 to March 2008. This is to be done in accord with the
findings of the Gershon review into public service delivery. Set against these
increased expectations the Review Team recognises that the provision of
increased Central Government resources is highly unlikely. The Review has
been undertaken on the working assumption that there will be no growth in
Council support for the CVS for the foreseeable future.

During the course of Council officer interviews the Review Team identified a
failure by almost every Council Department to be able to identify time spent by
officers working on support for the CVS. We were generally unable to access
time recording information, and there was an absence of individual work
programme data to help us assess the amount of staff time spent on this activity.
This is a significant weakness, not least in terms of performance management.
There are also considerable variations between and within Directorates as to
how work is recorded, which range from minimal data to reasonable levels of
detail. This may be a wider issue for Herefordshire Council than in relation to
this review alone.

As a result the Review Team has been unable to properly calculate how much
officer time is involved in supporting the CVS. We have had to use estimates of
time, to some extent based on a best guess by officers. Whilst recognising there
is a cost of recording such activity the Review Team considers the lack of this
information is unsatisfactory.

Most of the organisations interviewed requested that their responses be kept
confidential and not disclosed to third parties. After consideration this was
reluctantly agreed, because it led to more openness in the semi-structured
interviews and there was a willingness to comment critically on the activities of
other organisations. It does mean however that in order to maintain this
confidentiality we are not usually able to indicate within this report where specific
criticisms of organisations have come from.

The Review is most appropriately described as a Service Improvement Review,
which contains the elements of the Best Value review guidelines, (comparison,
consultation and challenge) with the exception of addressing competitive testing
of service options. Nevertheless the Review did identify that market testing may
be appropriate in some service areas. If agreed this would require an additional
piece of work that is outside the scope of the Review.

More significantly, there is no overall Council strategy in place for CVS support.
During the interview process we discovered that there is no common view as to
why the Council supports the CVS. Some responses were that we provide
support because we have always done so. Others believed that support was
needed because volunteers would always be able to provide services more
cheaply than direct Council provision. There was a comment that such support
was helping to meet the ambitions of the Herefordshire Plan.

11

17



3.4.8

3.4.9

The Review Team suggests the Council cannot demonstrate it is achieving best
value if it is not clear why the sector needs support and what objectives that
support should fund. The interview process identified there is no clarity amongst
Council staff as to the purpose of funding the CVS. As a result virtually every
grant application claims to be eligible as CVS activities. The absence of a CVS
support strategy against which we can measure activity has presented us with
fundamental difficulties.

It is difficult to map the full extent of Council CVS support in Herefordshire. The
Review Team struggled to make accurate like for like comparisons with
Infrastructure organisations within and outside the County. Earlier this year
Worcestershire County Council began a Best Value review of the CVS, which is
still ongoing. They state that there is a considerably more complex degree of
comparison required than a straightforward review of other Council services.
They have concluded that there are limits to the amount of comparative data
that can be used to make judgements on the value for money obtained from the
Community and Voluntary Sector.

12

18



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

VOLUNTARY SECTOR GRANTS SCHEME

Herefordshire Council has operated a Voluntary Sector Grants scheme since it
came into existence in 1998. £500,000 a year has been allocated by the Policy
& Community Directorate, in addition to substantial in-kind support. Of this sum
approximately £160,000 is allocated each year to voluntary sector organisations
as grants and the remainder is used to fund Service Level Agreements with
Infrastructure organisations.

A list of grant awards from 2002 to 2004 is detailed in Appendix 10.

The Voluntary Sector Grants scheme has largely followed the historical funding
arrangements of the former District Councils. Grants have been allocated
against service areas using the following budget percentage allocations as
guidelines:

CATEGORY Guideline Percentage Allocation
Arts 23.96%
Environment/Countryside 2.27%

Play 1.22%

Youth 12.43%

Community 55.40%

Heritage 2.05%

Sport 2.66%

TOTAL 100% (Rounded)

There is no strong case for retaining these percentage allocations, and there
was particular criticism from a number of people interviewed that the percentage
allocation guidelines could not be justified. There were cases made for keeping,
and indeed increasing the proportions for individual service areas.

The Review Team considers grant applications should be considered on merit
against agreed criteria. It should be recognised from time to time there are likely
to be advantages in funding particular service areas disproportionately. The
Review Team recommends the current funding by percentage guideline
allocations should be discontinued.

There are two annual bidding rounds, which aim to allocate 80% of funds in the
first round. Applications have to be submitted by early January each year for the
first round of funding. Successful applicants receive offer letters each April. The
remaining 20% is allocated in the second round. Applications have to be
submitted by the end of March for second round funding. Successful applicants
receive offer letters in early June. Bids are always heavily oversubscribed in
relation to funding available. There is no justification for two annual bidding
rounds with the associated duplication of time spent administering the scheme.

The Community Regeneration Team (CRT) administers the scheme, which
takes up a small amount of staff time (representing up to 7 hours per week). The
CRT provides much more support to the CVS, and keeps acceptable work
programme and timekeeping records.

13

19



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

A number of CVS organisations continue to receive grants year on year and
have come to rely on this funding to continue their operations. The grants are
often used as evidence of match funding for other project applications. This is an
undesirable situation, and far removed from the original aim of grant support,
which was to provide one-off funding for CVS activities. The Review Team was
told that other organisations did not apply for funding, as they believed the
grants would continue to be fully allocated to existing organisations. There
appears to be some truth to this, as the Review Team noted there were few
applications for new projects.

Grants should only be approved on condition that future funding will not be
available from the Voluntary Sector Grants scheme. A argument was made that
in some instances where new services had been set up there could be a case
for providing funding over two years with a smaller amount of funding (tapering)
being offered in the second year. It is considered that in this exceptional event
funding should be agreed using a Service Level Agreement. In this way normal
grant funding will continue to be for one year only with no funding in the second
year. Funding for more than one year should not be provided by grants.

It was also noted that a number of individual Council strategies fail to consider
the role of the CVS and its potential contribution in delivering strategy objectives.
This situation reflects poorly on the Council. A suitable CVS support strategy
should be drawn up and adopted as soon as possible, and individual Council
strategies should examine the scope for including the CVS.

There is no robust Voluntary Sector Grants monitoring system or evaluation of
the impact of grant funding, which means the Council cannot demonstrate these
funds are being used effectively. Monitoring does take place, but the Review
Team considers this is weak because information is only required at the
conclusion of the scheme. This means the Council is often unaware when
problems arise during the course of projects. The Review Team also identified a
lack of clear criteria and expectation against which grants are being monitored.

We are therefore unable to find evidence that either agreeing a substantial
increase or decrease in Voluntary Sector Grants funding is making a significant
difference to Herefordshire residents. In addition there is very limited evaluation
information available when further grant applications are received in the
following year’s bidding rounds.

The eligibility criteria for the Voluntary Sector Grants scheme are included in
Appendix 11. The criteria used to approve applications are inadequate, and
there are no clear explanations given to justify the individual sums approved for
each grant application. We were advised by one Infrastructure organisation of
their discontent with funding decisions and of their concern the Council could not
objectively justify the funding allocations using the grant criteria. We were also
asked to recommend putting an appeals system in place to challenge decisions
made. The Review Team does not however accept that an appeals process is
justified. There will always be some debate over grant approvals, particularly
from unsuccessful applicants. There are however practical problems. If
Herefordshire Council allocated all the funding available at the outset where
would additional funds come from if an appeal were upheld?

14

20



4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

417

No criteria exist to target a proportion of grant funding activity in the areas of
greatest need, as measured by the Index of Multiple Deprivation. A case has
been made for ring-fencing some Voluntary Sector Grant funding. There is also
no requirement within the criteria for the grant recipient organisations to have
equal opportunities and diversity policies in place. The grant application form
does ask if the organisation has an equal opportunities policy, but no procedures
exist to check if these are actually observed. It was noted that organisations
without such policies might still be awarded a grant, subject to a grant condition
that such a policy be implemented.

All grant funding should be conditional upon the organisation in receipt of a grant
having diversity and equal opportunities policies, which are acceptable to
Herefordshire Council.

The Review Team looked at the Voluntary Grants applications appraisal
arrangements, and learned that applications are forwarded to officers with
expertise in the area concerned. For example, the Community Youth Service
Manager appraises young peoples’ projects. We observed that applications for
this area of service require the beneficiary organisation to have child protection
policies in place. However the Review Team does not consider a single
appraiser will always have the expertise to confirm the adequacy of such
policies. The Review Team recommends that the practice of single appraisal be
replaced by consideration from an appraisal panel, and commends the good
practice example of panel appraisal currently used by the area based
programmes.

Herefordshire Council should ensure the existing criteria is revisited,
strengthened and made more transparent. If this is implemented the allocation
of grants should be delegated to officers. However to ensure Members are still
involved with individual applications the Review Team recommends that the
relevant Cabinet Member be consulted over each application along with the
local Member where appropriate. This arrangement for Member involvement
works well with the Community Buildings Grant scheme. The CVS should be
involved in helping to determine the grants criteria, but not the grants decision-
making process.

Once funding is awarded individual managers should be made responsible for
grant performance relating to their service areas. Grants should be conditional
and only given in return for agreeing to meet a range of responsibilities. For
example, the Cultural Services Manager should be made responsible for any
grant funding given to cultural organisations. The Cultural Services Manager
should be required to agree a range of desired outputs and outcomes from the
grant recipients. These activities should help to achieve the objectives set within
individual strategies as well as the wider Ambitions of the Herefordshire Plan.
Individual managers should also consider whether Service Level Agreements
might be more appropriate in some circumstances. This would be subject to
funding being available.

15

21



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS

There are at least 12 Herefordshire Council Service Level Agreements (SLAs)
currently in use that set out our support to the CVS. Christine Wright, Principal
Lawyer, was the legal representative on the Review Team, who examined each
of them. It was apparent that as contractual documents most SLAs are unlikely
to stand up to any legal challenge. The Review Team believes that
Herefordshire Council’'s SLAs are not adequate.

The Review Team did not conduct interviews with every CVS organisation that
has an SLA with Herefordshire Council. It was not felt appropriate to undertake
this work until the Council had agreed its CVS support strategy. It is
recommended that SLAs with organisations that receive significant support
(such as Age Concern) be revisited once the CVS support strategy has been
approved.

The Review Team undertook a literature survey as part of the review and
identified a judicial review outcome that quashed a recent Leicester City Council
decision to cut CVS funding. This ruled that the Authority had failed to properly
consult with CVS organisations prior to taking the decision to cut funding. The
Review Team is concerned that provision within SLAs to terminate agreements
are not robust in all cases.

The SLAs contain very different wording, paragraph headings and are of varying
lengths. Some SLAs do not even contain basic information such as payment
arrangements, or targets. The Review Team found that there was no standard
SLA document in existence for use across the Council. There is in most cases
an absence of information within the SLA which clearly sets out each of the
parties’ responsibilities or which specifies the consequences of non-
performance.

During their interviews the Review Team asked Council officers about these
variances in their SLAs. Some agreements date back several years, often
before the 1998 Local Government Reorganisation. A few SLA documents are
based on those terms proposed by the beneficiary organisations; other
agreements were prepared in an ad hoc manner and contain only what was
thought necessary at that time to meet the services’ particular needs. It should
be noted that some officers have been aware of these shortcomings. We were
advised that because a review of the voluntary sector had been expected for
some time officers were awaiting the outcome of the review before revisiting
their SLAs. Officers would be looking for SLA guidance from the review’s
outcome.

Infrastructure organisations also find difficulties working with a majority of our
SLAs. One organisation interviewed was unhappy with different requirements
from the same Council Directorate. One organisation wanted a more demanding
SLA, on the grounds that it would be easier for them to evidence good
performance if the SLA requirements were more explicit. We also listened to an
opposing view, which suggested less specific SLAs gave organisations much
more flexibility to deliver services as needs changed. The Review Team
challenged this approach, and considered SLAs should be more specific. We

16

22



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

recommend funding via SLAs should be more closely linked to required and
measurable outputs and outcomes.

The CRT monitors a number of SLAs with key Infrastructure organisations. It
undertakes a limited amount of monitoring, but the Review Team found this was
weak, partly because there was a lack of clear criteria against which SLAs
should be monitored. The Review Team feels this situation is unsatisfactory. Our
concerns are with the current Council SLA monitoring systems, as it has not
been possible to form comprehensive judgements about infrastructure
organisation value for money and beneficiaries’ satisfaction using the existing
monitoring information alone as set out in the SLAs.

The Review Team looked at developing a comprehensive model SLA, initially to
be drawn up by the Council’s Legal Section. However, during the course of our
Council officers interviews it became apparent there was a danger the
comprehensive model SLA would become too onerous and complicated, and
could divert disproportionate resources away from service provision into SLA
monitoring activities. It could also deter CVS organisations from entering into
SLAs with the Council.

As an alternative the Review Team proposes the adoption of a checklist of
standard headings, accompanied by some brief text. Council officers and
Infrastructure organisations welcomed this approach. These could be used
flexibly by services, depending on what is required, but still be robust. (See
Appendix 12). The Review Team recommends that the SLA checklist be
adopted for all SLAs and introduced as they become due for renewal.

Further SLA information can be found in Appendices 13, 14 and 15.

There was also enthusiasm for introducing rolling SLAs, from Infrastructure
organisations and a number of Council officers. These would be agreed for an
initial period, usually three years, and reviewed after year one. If performance
were satisfactory the SLA would be rolled over for a further year, leaving the
SLA, in this example, with still another three years to run. Such arrangements
offer more security to Infrastructure organisations, particularly in terms of budget
planning and employee job security. Council staff are also relieved of the task of
negotiating SLAs as frequently. The rolling SLA would still allow for
discontinuation of funding in the event of non-performance. There are however
some drawbacks to rolling SLAs. It requires Herefordshire Council to effectively
guarantee funding for longer periods, which may not be desirable if service
changes are planned. There is also a risk that such arrangements may lead to a
degree of complacency over service provision.

The Review Team recommends that rolling SLAs should not routinely be
entered into, but that they should be used where this is appropriate.

Questions were asked during interviews to seek views on the minimum and
maximum values for SLAs as well as the maximum length of time SLAs should
be entered into. There was no consensus amongst Council officers and
Infrastructure organisations. At one extreme it was suggested an SLA was
needed regardless of value if it was for a service lasting more than one year. At
the other extreme one officer did not believe the cost of negotiating, drawing up

17

23



and monitoring an SLA was justified at a value below £25,000 per annum. Most
of those interviewed suggested an SLA should last at least one year. The
maximum length of time for a proposed SLA was five years, but the majority
considered three years was about right. The Review Team does not offer a
recommended optimum monetary value or timescale for SLAs. We consider it is
best left to those with responsibility for SLAs to determine according to the
needs of their service.

18

24



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

INFRASTRUCTURE ORGANISATIONS

The Review Team was asked to examine the services provided by the main
Infrastructure organisations. The Review Team also looked at the SLA with the
Citizens Advice Bureaux, as the Council provides substantial support to this
organisation. In addition the Review Team was asked to look at support to the
Voluntary Sector Assembly. Summary comments are detailed later, but more
general issues are raised here.

During the structured interviews the Review Team was provided with draft
guidelines for joint working with Community First, Community & Voluntary Action
Ledbury and District, and Herefordshire Voluntary Action. We were told that
these guidelines had been drawn up to establish joint planning and service
delivery protocols between these three Development Agencies in the County.
They were provided in confidence and are not therefore attached as an
appendix. We do however refer to a limited number of areas in the guidelines.

Some Council officers have serious reservations over the value of the
guidelines. They do not believe the proposed arrangements will lead to better
support for the CVS in Herefordshire. The Review Team has studied the
proposed guidelines and has concluded they are not robust. We consider that
the relationship between some of the potentially competing Infrastructure
organisations has been too comfortable. As an example we note that where
conflicts arise external mediation may be appropriate. However this is subject to
all parties voluntarily agreeing to participate, and there is no reference to any
mediation outcome being binding. It is not clear what happens if two of the three
organisations agree but the other organisation does not. Council officers feel
any party can in theory refuse to accept the outcome. In our view the guidelines
appear to focus on protection of the organisations concerned rather than the
benefit of end users.

The development of a Local Compact will help to further explore the
relationships of organisations within the CVS, and we recommend it should go
further than the draft guidelines to produce clearer accountability.

The Review Team was later advised that the draft guidelines are not acceptable
to one of the Infrastructure organisations, not least because they now consider
them too complicated. A separate Infrastructure organisation was also unhappy
they had been excluded from the opportunity to help develop the guidelines.
This might not have been possible as the funding for this work was only related
to the three Development Agencies, but it does point to some unease felt by
other organisations over the draft guidelines.

All the Infrastructure organisations were given a list of questions to consider in
advance of the structured interviews. They were then asked standard questions
during the interview process itself. The comments below are not a
comprehensive summary of the interviews, as this has confidentiality
considerations, but they do identify key issues that arose during the discussions.

19

25



6.7

Community & Voluntary Action Ledbury and District

a)

d)

Community & Voluntary Action Ledbury and District (CVALD) is a Local
Development Agency which delivers the combined services of a Council for
Voluntary Services and a Voluntary Bureau. In addition, they also deliver a
number of volunteer based community projects for the Ledbury area.

CVALD covers Ledbury Town and 23 surrounding parishes. To some
extent they provide similar services to Herefordshire Voluntary Action. The
Review Team was advised both CVALD and Herefordshire Voluntary
Action seek to minimise duplication by operating within their defined wards.
There are however some key differences, as CVALD does not provide
outreach services.

In our interviews a standard question was to challenge organisations to
consider the option of running a unified Voluntary Action service across the
County with a single administrative headquarters. CVALD expressed
concern such an approach was contrary to a previous assurance from
Herefordshire Council that it would not seek to influence the future structure
of service delivery of CVS infrastructure functions by use of the funding
mechanism. The Review Team believes that although this position may
have been justified in the past, it is no longer tenable, and that the scope of
the review required it to consider merger options. CVALD argue such a
merger is not desirable, and that it would have an adverse effect locally on
their non-support staff, as well creating communications difficulties.

CVALD were willing to consider co-location, as a means of delivering a
better service, However, CVALD stated this would depend on factors such
as which Council departments or other organisations were to be located in
the same building.

The Review Team also wished to obtain evidence of the effectiveness of
the services provided. We were advised CVALD had undertaken its own
satisfaction survey, and findings from the survey were being used to
improve services. The Review Team was not given access to the survey
results on the grounds of confidentiality. The Community Development
Officer had previously been supplied with details of beneficiaries. Using this
and the limited monitoring information available to us from the SLA the
Review Team conducted a small satisfaction survey. Most responses
indicated people were generally satisfied with the services provided by
CVALD, with comments expressing satisfaction with the quality of CVALD
advice, and with the community transport project. There were rather fewer
criticisms, but these related to poor physical access to the building and the
environment being less than businesslike.

The Review Team is concerned there is no consistent service provision
across the County, as Herefordshire Council has to deal with two separate
Development Agencies, which duplicates the costs of monitoring these
services. We also find that the Infrastructure organisations can compete for
the same limited external funding opportunities. The Review Team believes
this is wasteful, and may indicate to external funders the lack of joined up
collaborative working in Herefordshire. Interviews with Council officers and

20

26



6.8

g9)

other organisations showed a large majority believed the existence of a
separate Ledbury Infrastructure organisation was not in the best interests
of Herefordshire.

A standard interview challenge was to ask if there were any services
provided by Herefordshire Council which could be better provided by the
CVS. (We also challenged Council officers to identify services provided by
CVALD that could be better provided in-house). CVALD did not identify any
additional Council services that they wished to provide. The Review Team
interviews with Council officers did not identify any CVALD services that
would be better provided in-house. The Review Team stresses it is
important to have CVS services provided locally.

The Review Team does not believe there is any economic justification for
supporting CVALD as a separate organisation. There is a strong case for
having one single Voluntary Action organisation for Herefordshire. If
achieved it will secure economies of scale, secure consistency of provision,
and result in less monitoring and administration for Herefordshire Council.
The Review Team recommends that funding for CVALD be withdrawn at
the conclusion of the existing SLA on the 31%' March 2005. The Review
Team recommends that such notice be given as early as possible.

CVALD was asked what would be the impact of a major reduction in
funding. We were advised CVALD would seek funding from other sources.
They stated the Council would thus have a reduced influence on the
services provided by CVALD. It should be noted that the withdrawal of
Council funding by itself would not mean the demise of CVALD. The
Review Team nevertheless recommends that Herefordshire Council makes
clear that the current pattern of provision is not in the best interests of the
County as a whole.

Herefordshire Voluntary Action

a)

b)

d)

Herefordshire Voluntary Action (HVA) is a Local Development Agency
which offers advice, information and support to CVS organisations. It also
provides information on and co-ordinates volunteering.

HVA covers the whole of the County with the exception of Ledbury Town
and its 23 surrounding parishes, which is covered by CVALD.

HVA came into existence by effectively amalgamating all the County’s local
Voluntary Action organisations with the exception of CVALD. The Review
Team welcomes this change, which has resulted in economies of scale and
a more consistent service provision for most of the County.

HVA was asked a range of standard questions including a challenge that
services seemed to be duplicated between Infrastructure organisations. We
were advised HVA avoid duplication of activity with CVALD by observing
strict geographical ward boundaries for their service provision. This seems
to be happening, although some services such as community transport
activities naturally cross ward boundaries. The Review Team identified
duplication of activity with Community First services. In response we were

21

27



6.9

f)

h)

advised regular meetings take place between HVA and Community First to
ensure duplication is minimised. The Review Team noted an instance of
service overlap provision in the Golden Valley, but this was subsequently
resolved by a meeting between the two organisations. The Review Team
welcome this outcome, but it does provide evidence that some duplication
can occur.

The Review Team did not have the resources to examine HVA’s cost
recovery and financial systems in great detail, but from the work done and
from interviews with Council officers we are generally satisfied HVA
charges are not unreasonable for the services provided.

HVA was challenged to justify the continued existence of two Voluntary
Action Agencies in the County. The Review Team did not feel HVA were
opposed to the option to create a single unified Voluntary Action service
across the County with a single administrative headquarters.

HVA was asked what would be the impact of a major reduction in funding.
We were advised the Volunteer Bureau and the core Community Voluntary
Sector functions would be lost. Management would exist solely for
projects; there would be no scope for development. We asked about
seeking alternative funding. HVA stated that time would be needed to look
elsewhere. A one-year period of notice would not be long enough to put
together alternative funding applications and have the new arrangements in
place. The Review Team were advised it would be necessary for HVA to
cut staff, reduce costs and withdraw services.

A standard interview challenge was to ask if there were any services
provided by Herefordshire Council which could be better provided by the
Voluntary Sector. HVA provided a number of suggestions, which are
included in the list in section 6.9.

The Review Team again wished to obtain evidence of the effectiveness of
the services provided, and conducted a limited beneficiary survey. Fewer
responses were received from the HVA questionnaire than any other
Infrastructure organisation. However all the responses received indicated
people were satisfied with the services provided by HVA. Comments
included references to high quality staff and a good personal advice
service.

Community First

a)

b)

Community First is a Local Development Agency and Rural Community
Council. It is an independent charity working across Herefordshire and
Worcestershire supporting the work of local communities and Voluntary
organisations.

Community First was asked a range of standard questions including a
challenge that services seemed to be duplicated between Infrastructure
organisations. Community First replied that they offered some similar
services, but they were actually complementary, such as transport
schemes. In their view Community First had a more strategic role than the

22

28



d)

g9)

h)

other Herefordshire Infrastructure organisations and stated they employed
specialist workers who were able to offer more in-depth advice. The
Review Team structured interviews did not entirely support these
Community First statements. There were concerns that the distinction
between the strategic and delivery roles were blurred, and that there was a
continuing service overlap between Community First and HVA.

We indicated that during earlier structured interviews a number of
comments had been made to the Review Team that Community First did
not always operate collaboratively in the best interests of the CVS. We
sought their comments, but this suggestion was strongly refuted.

We outlined to Community First a statement made to us during our earlier
interviews that the draft guidelines were not challenging in terms of joint
working, and were the product of too comfortable organisational
relationships. Community First also refuted this, and claimed the
organisations involved worked hard to produce a very robust document,
which had been facilitated by consultants.

We challenged Community First with our view that joint guidelines might
not be needed at all if the three organisations in Herefordshire were
merged.

Community First stated it was not possible to merge a Community Council
with Voluntary Action organisations. Their solution was to have more
effective joint working, and so achieve economies of scale. Community
First argued they covered two counties and therefore had already secured
economies of scale. Community First were however willing to discuss
sharing back office functions as a means of cutting costs and improving
services. The Review Team literature search was not able to confirm if a
merger of Community Council with a Voluntary action organisation was
actually impossible.

We sought Community First’'s views on their SLA with the Council. We
were advised that the SLA was not detailed but gave Community First
flexibility, which had allowed them to obtain substantial match funding from
Herefordshire Council’s SLA. The flexibility was said to give more added
value to Herefordshire Council. The Review Team does not accept this
view, and more detailed comments can be found elsewhere in the report in
Section 5 on SLAs.

We asked for information on how Community First distinguished between
core and management costs in their SLAs. We were advised Community
First are no longer approaching core costs in this way. They have moved to
the Full Cost Recovery Model, where individual project costs include an
element of core costs. Community First is fully signed up to this change, as
they consider it will enable their finances to become more transparent.

The Review Team tested the value for money implications of this model in
their structured interviews with Council officers and other Infrastructure
organisations. The Full Cost Recovery Model approach has some merit
and the Review Team understands why there is support for this approach.

23

29



6.10

Community First was asked to identify services currently provided by the
Council which they considered could be better provided by themselves.
Their responses are included in the larger list detailed in Section 6.9.

Community First were asked what would be the impact of a major reduction
in funding. We were advised there would be a serious adverse impact on
directly provided services to people on the ground. The organisation would
survive, but there would be a withdrawal of provision to organisations in
Herefordshire, such as the removal of signposting and funding advice, and
village hall community building advice.

From our Council officer interviews it emerged there was almost unanimous
agreement that Community First management charges are thought to be
excessive, and do not provide value for money. Our concern is that
Community First charges are thought to be high in comparison to other
Infrastructure organisations, and some posts may be better placed with
other Infrastructure organisations or within the Council, rather than remain
with  Community First. The Review Team recommends that no more
projects be awarded to Community First without a competitive tendering
exercise taking place. We recommend this should also apply to existing
projects where the appropriate notice can be given.

The Review Team wished to obtain evidence of the effectiveness of the
services provided, and conducted a limited beneficiary survey. Over 80% of
respondents had a good impression of the services offered by Community
First. There was however a small percentage of replies, which claimed
Community First had problems with duplication of services, showed a lack
of enthusiasm and were slow to respond.

Herefordshire Association of Local Councils

a)

b)

Herefordshire Association of Local Councils (HALC) is a body which
provides training, support and advice to Parish and Local Councils and
their clerks.

HALC was asked a range of standard questions including a challenge that
services seemed to be duplicated between Infrastructure organisations. We
were advised that HALC provided a more specialist service to a clearly
defined group, (Parish and Town Councils) but there was some overlap
with one other Infrastructure organisation in terms of giving advice. The
same organisation had also offered training provision, which was in
competition with HALC provided services. HALC considered this was not a
desirable situation. We suggested this be resolved by dialogue but it might
be possible to use stricter SLA terms to eliminate such overlaps.

We challenged HALC to consider if there was scope for them to be co-
located with other Infrastructure organisations in a single building, to
achieve economies of scale. HALC were not opposed to this in principle,
but they required assurances that any building identified would be
accessible and secure, with a suitable area for meeting confidentiality
needs.

24

30



f)

The Review Team wished to obtain evidence of the effectiveness of the
services provided, and conducted a limited beneficiary survey. HALC
suggested this could be measured indirectly, by looking to the high levels
of HALC membership in the County. (95% of Herefordshire’s Parish and
Local Councils are members of HALC, which is much above the national
average). Responses received were generally favourable, with comments
on the quality of their training courses and helpfulness in providing advice
on a wide range of topics. There was one repeated criticism, which related
to staff being unavailable at the HALC building during office hours.

HALC was asked what would be the impact of a major reduction in funding.
We were advised HALC would have to increase membership fees, and this
could lead to a loss of members. Even if fees were increased HALC
indicated their services would also be reduced in the short-term.
Herefordshire Council’s Parish Council Officer would have to deal with
more enquiries, and HALC doubted if there was sufficient expertise to
respond adequately. HALC indicated that increased fees would lead to a
higher precept and therefore a higher Council Tax charge.

HALC was asked for views on their SLA with the Council. They welcomed
the possibility of a checklist approach to drawing up SLAs. They felt that for
the £10,000 they receive from Herefordshire Council too much monitoring
and additional work was required. There had been meetings with Council
officers and we were told it was had been agreed the monthly monitoring
meetings would be reduced to quarterly. HALC had also drawn up a
simpler work programme. We followed this up with Council officers and
were advised HALC had consistently failed to meet the monitoring
requirements of the SLA. The revised, monitoring requirements were the
minimum needed for the Council to satisfy itself that HALC was providing
services in accordance with the SLA. Unfortunately HALC were still not
complying with the SLA. The Review Team recommends that HALC be
warned of the implications of not meeting the SLA monitoring requirements.
In the event that HALC fails to provide the monitoring information on time
action should be taken to terminate the SLA.

6.11 Herefordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services

a)

b)

Herefordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services (HCVYS) are a
specialist Local Development Agency, dealing with services for young
people in the County. They receive modest Council funding support.

HCVYS was asked a range of standard questions including a challenge
that services seemed to be duplicated between Infrastructure
organisations. We were advised that HCVYS was involved with the
Infrastructure Consortium Investment Plan to identify gaps and overlaps of
service provision within the County. HCVYS did not accept there was any
measurable overlap between the services it provided and other
Infrastructure organisations. HCVYS acted as a broker to youth
organisations and had procedures in place to signpost to HVA or
Community First for more specialist services.

25

31



f)

HCVYS noted that within the next 12 months over 40 parish plans should
have been completed. HCVYS was concerned that single Infrastructure
organisations would be unable to meet the resulting requests for support.
To avoid duplication and maximise the use of resources HCVYS supported
the suggestion that HVA, HALC and HCVYS should work together and
decide which areas each organisation should cover.

HCVYS was challenged to consider what scope existed within the County
for achieving economies of scale, for example, by merging Infrastructure
Bodies into a smaller number of organisations or sharing support services.
HCVYS accepted this was possible, but some HCVYS members were
worried about services being centralised, as this could lead to a loss of
local service in rural areas. HCVYS argued Herefordshire Council had a
part to play in reducing costs, by providing support to the CVS in areas
such as Information Technology, Procurement and Human Resources
training. We asked if there was scope to review appropriate training
provision in the County. HCVYS supported this idea and suggested a
single point of contact for specific training would be helpful. However,
HCVYS stated that room for cooperation was limited, as existing Voluntary
Sector and Infrastructure organisations would compete with each other to
secure funding from whatever sources were available.

HCVYS had established joint working arrangements with several other
organisations, and had clear procedures for collaboration. The Review
Team welcomed this approach.

HCVYS were asked for views on the Youth Consortium SLA with the
Council. We were advised the SLA was seen as a Partnership Agreement,
which had worked quite well, partly because it was flexible. The Review
Team does not accept this view, and more detailed comments can be
found elsewhere in the report in Section 5 on SLAs. HCVYS found the
monitoring arrangements were satisfactory. There had been opportunities
to work with the Council’s Community Youth Services (CYS) to amend the
SLA to meet changed circumstances. HCVYS saw no need to change the
current SLA, other than to support the introduction of rolling SLAs. However
HCVYS felt that communication in CYS could be improved, as in their view
information did not seem to filter down. HCVYS also believed there was,
what they described as, “inadequate strategic local planning” by CYS.

All organisations interviewed were challenged to move towards becoming
social enterprises, which could be financially self-sustaining. HCVYS did
not consider this was an option for this sector, as small youth groups would
never be able to pass on the full cost of service provision. The Review
Team understood this difficulty.

HCVYS were asked a standard question regarding the merit of targeting
some resources to the most deprived areas of the County. Some youth
organisations target specific groups of young people, and part of the
Transforming Youth Service funding goes towards the Development
Worker post. Unusually, HCVYS did not support the targeting approach in
terms of Voluntary Sector grants. Targeting, in their view, left reduced or
little funding for ordinary service users elsewhere. HCVYS claimed it was

26

32



6.12

more expensive to continually put in and take out targeted support than to
provide core funding, which provided preventative services. The Review
Team recognised this possibility, but did not accept the HCVYS argument.
Service targeting recommendations are listed in the Executive Summary.

HCVYS were asked what would be the impact of a major reduction in
funding. We were advised that HCVYS could not operate and the
Consortium work would have to be taken on by Council CYS staff. The
HCVYS delegated grant fund would either cease or have to be run by CYS
staff. (This funding is part of the Voluntary Sector Grants scheme). The
strategic overview would disappear, as no other agency looked specifically
at youth within the county. HCVYS stated CYS did not have the capacity to
identify needs in communities as set out in Government targets. We asked
what would happen to individual youth groups in the County. HCVYS
thought that the larger groups would probably survive, but many smaller
groups would probably have to cut services or close.

The Review Team wished to obtain evidence of the effectiveness of the
services provided, and conducted a limited beneficiary survey. There were
many positive responses and virtually no criticisms. HCVYS was especially
valued for the quality of advice offered and for its administration of the
small delegated grant fund. The Review Team believes Herefordshire
Council achieves value for money from its agreements with HCVYS.

ALLIANCE

a)

b)

ALLIANCE (The Alliance of Voluntary Sector Organisations in Health and
Social Care — formerly known as Herefordshire Community Care Alliance)
is also a Forum Support Organisation (FSO) supporting 8 Patient and
Public Involvement (PPl) Forums in Herefordshire and Worcestershire.
FSOs are not-for-profit organisations that have been contracted through a
competitive tendering process to support PPl Forums.

In April 2004 a five year compact was signed with the ALLIANCE and the
Primary Care Trust and Social Care and Strategic Housing Directorate,

c) The Review Team has studied the compact, which appears to be

d)

comprehensive, but it is too early to establish the effectiveness of these
arrangements. Health Service managers were advised about the review, and
expressed concern that ALLIANCE might be affected by possible changes to
the compact. The Review Team agrees it would be inappropriate to suggest
changes to the compact at this stage. The Review Team recommends that
the COMPACT be reviewed in accordance with the review provision set out
in the terms of the COMPACT.

For the reasons outlined above the Review Team did not carry out a
beneficiary survey.

27

33



6.13

Citizens Advice Bureaux

a)

f)

¢))

Citizens Advice Bureaux (CAB) provide free information and advice on
legal, money and other matters to the general public. They are a registered
charity and the majority of advisers are volunteers. Herefordshire CAB was
formed in 1999 following the amalgamation of the three bureaux based in
Hereford, Leominster and Ross-on-Wye.

Collecting useful and reliable information about the performance of the
CAB Service is difficult, because of the large number and diversity of
bureaux and the services they provide. An earlier exercise by Council
officers suggested there was some debate as to the performance criteria
that should be measured. For example, if high throughput is a priority, or
the most important measure of efficiency, it would be easy for a CAB to
increase this by reducing face to face contact with clients, by taking on
simple cases only, or by introducing an automated telephone response
service. Throughput needs to be judged against a quality of outcome.

Measuring the outcome of advice is very difficult; there are no agreed ways
in which to evaluate and compare the different outcomes of advice, and
these are affected by many factors, of which the advice given is but one.

Although CAB is not strictly speaking an Infrastructure organisation, they
were nevertheless asked a range of standard questions including a
challenge that services seemed to be duplicated between Infrastructure
organisations. CAB claims they are the only organisation of its kind able to
offer high quality advice in Herefordshire. The CAB recognised that other
CVS Agencies gave advice, but saw that as secondary to their main tasks.
CAB did sometimes, when appropriate, signpost people to other services.

CAB accepted that competition for funding sometimes deterred
organisations from working in partnership as that could mean having to
share the funding, whereas if they applied individually and were successful
they would get all the funding.

CAB was asked what scope existed for economies of scale, for example,
by merging into a single advice organisation or sharing support services.
Suggestions from interviews with Council officers included using the
Council’s insurance cover for buildings, and providing IT services. CAB was
not enthusiastic about merging, but was interested in sharing support
services. CAB in Herefordshire sourced its IT systems from the national
CAB network, which did not provide support “on the ground”. CAB was
interested in Herefordshire Council IT support, but not if that took away
funding, as it would be of no net benefit to the CAB.

CAB was asked what would be the advantages of CAB operating from a
building where other CVS organisations and Council Departments were
based. CAB replied that this was happening and the Leominster CAB office
based within INFO in Herefordshire demonstrates their willingness to co-
locate with other organisations. However CAB premises in Hereford
continued to be a problem. It had a good location and was rent-free, but
was cramped and had very poor access. CAB had refused disabled
volunteers because they could not properly accommodate them. The lack
of space restricted how many volunteers could be recruited, as there was

28

34



h)

no room to train them. The Review Team also noted the poor
accommodation restricted the ability of the CAB to bid for Legal Service
contracts.

CAB was asked for views on their SLA with the Council. CAB was unhappy
with their SLA, describing it as very poor. We suggested the possibility of a
checklist approach to drawing up SLAs. CAB expressed a preference for
adopting the National CAB pro forma SLA as it was felt to be a better
model.

We challenged CAB to demonstrate it provided value for money. CAB
stated that the funding they received from Herefordshire Council allowed
CAB to secure an additional 50% on top of the Herefordshire Council
funding

CAB was able to supply details on numbers of clients seen, and numbers
of advisers. CAB had comparative national statistics to demonstrate the
Herefordshire Bureaux scored well against other CABs. Added value was
demonstrated by its representation on groups such as Race Equality, and
Community Support Network. CAB was part of the Community Legal
Services Partnership, as well as the Voluntary Sector Assembly, and the
Social Inclusion Ambition Group of the Herefordshire Partnership. CAB
had feedback and complaint systems in place, and conducted a bi-annual
survey of clients. The Review Team contrasted this with its benchmarking
exercise (see Appendix 4). This indicated that Herefordshire Council
support for its local CAB service is not generous.

It was not possible to carry out a beneficiary survey as the CAB deals with
individuals and confidentiality is paramount. However the Review Team is
satisfied from the monitoring available that the CAB provides a good
service to the 20,000 plus clients it sees each year. This number is
increasing.

CAB was asked if there were any directly provided Council services that
CAB was better placed to deliver. One area is specifically highlighted here,
the Welfare Rights Team. CAB argued they could carry out much of the
work of the Welfare Rights team, which in their view was set up without
consultation. CAB tried to engage them through the Welfare Rights Forum,
but this was not successful.

CAB was asked what would be the impact of a major reduction in funding
to CAB. We were advised this would be really damaging. CAB did not
receive enough funding from Herefordshire Council to cover the cost of
their core service. CAB ran at a deficit in the previous year and any
funding reduction would probably require CAB to reduce their numbers of
paid staff. We noted their four staff were employed using SLA funding, but
three of those were part time. It was likely that, at the very least, one of the
main offices would have to be closed. The Review Team accepts the
impact of reducing funding would be considerable. Herefordshire Council’s
INFO shops would probably have to deal with many thousands of
individuals and families who would no longer have access to CAB support.

29

35



P)

q)

The Review Team also interviewed ABLE, which was formerly
Herefordshire DIAL, an advisory service for disabled people, their families
and carers. ABLE advises on benefits available, facilities people may need
and where to obtain them to assist in maintaining people’s independence.
They confirmed there was some duplication of service with the Welfare
Rights Team, and also informed us that ABLE had clients coming to them
who had not been satisfied with the quality of services from the Welfare
Rights Team.

The Review Team interviewed the Director of Social Care and Strategic
Housing, and was pleased to receive confirmation of her full support for the
work of the Welfare Rights Team being covered by this Review. We
included the option of looking at partnership working with CAB, ABLE and
the Welfare Rights Team. A Welfare Rights Team interview took place, but
the team failed to justify a number of statements made to us. It has not
produced evidence to clarify its statutory role, nor has it supplied a
justification for the cost effectiveness of the service provided. There is also
a lack of benchmarking information to compare its performance with
comparable Authorities. If this service were to remain in-house, (and there
is a strong case for it to be moved into the CVS), we are not convinced this
work should remain within Social Care and Strategic Housing. There is an
argument for placing Welfare Rights work in the Treasurer’'s Department
under Revenue and Benefits services. The Review Team has concerns
that moving the service within the Treasurer's Department may limit
benefits uptake, as we were advised clients could be reluctant to discuss
their personal financial situations with this section.

The Welfare Rights Team as it is presently organised was unable to
demonstrate it offers better value for money than if it was run by the CVS.
We also consider that the majority of clients would welcome accessing an
independent service rather than one operated by Herefordshire Council.
Our interviews lead us to conclude there is a duplication of services. In
addition some doubts have been raised over the Welfare Rights Team
service quality. We have not been able from information received from the
Welfare Rights Team to reach a detailed conclusion. Despite this the
Review Team considers that at the least there is a case for pursuing
collaborative working arrangements with CAB, ABLE and Welfare Rights.
In the absence of further information we recommend consideration should
be given to moving the Welfare Rights service out of the Council and
commissioning the Welfare Rights service by placing it with the CAB.
Alternatively a market testing exercise should be undertaken.

The Review Team supports continued funding of the CAB, as it provides a
good service and offers value for money. A loss of CAB services would
have a detrimental effect on the County and could lead to a significant
increase in the workload of the Council’s INFO shops. It is recommended
that funding for the CAB should remain at their current levels whilst the
option of partnership working with ABLE and Welfare Rights is explored in
more detail. The CAB faces a funding shortfall and there may be some
justification for providing additional one-off support until the partnership-
working outcome has been reviewed.

30

36



6.14

Voluntary Sector Assembly

a)

b)

d)

The VSA attempts to act as a voice for the CVS in Herefordshire and
through the Herefordshire Partnership is a central point of contact between
Herefordshire Council and the County’s CVS.

The VSA is not an Infrastructure organisation, but was specifically included
within the review of CVS support. VSA were interviewed, but a number of
standard interview questions were not appropriate. We began the interview
by asking the VSA what support they were seeking from the Council.

Current VSA funding from Government Office West Midlands expires at the
end of March 2005. The VSA had not previously approached the Council
for financial assistance, but would look to apply for Council for funding if it
was available.

We challenged the VSA to comment on the very low levels of awareness of
the VSA amongst Herefordshire Council staff. We also advised of concerns
expressed to us that the VSA had not been effective. The VSA responded
that there was a requirement for Herefordshire Council Steering Group
officers to publicise the VSA activities internally. (These sit on the Steering
Group in a non-voting advisory capacity). The VSA believed the failure was
the fault of the Council officers involved with the VSA to promote its
activities within the wider Council. They suggested there was merit in
arranging a seminar to raise awareness of the VSA with Council staff.

We asked the VSA to explain what was the added value of the VSA, in
addition to the contribution of other Infrastructure organisations. We were
told the VSA was different from other CVS organisations as it had a
democratic structure, which was able to reach small and diverse groups.
The VSA suggested they had the ability to pull in more projects and funding
for Herefordshire specifically around the subjects of democracy and
participation, because of the democratic nature and mandate of the
organisation. The VSA contended they were the only body that could
legitimately represent the views of, and speak for the CVS in Herefordshire.
We subsequently raised this issue with a number of Council officers, but it
became clear they did not accept that the VSA had an exclusive voice in
this regard.

We fed back the criticism that the VSA was always chasing funding instead
of doing the job it was supposed to do, and had to some extent lost its way.
The VSA did not accept this statement. The VSA agreed it did seek
funding, but to no more extent than any other CVS organisation. The VSA
argued that if Herefordshire Council gave the VSA a properly funded SLA
then to some extent it would alleviate the need for perceived continual
fundraising.

We referred to statements from interviews that the idea of a VSA was
sound, but it was not working in practice. We gave the example of a lack of
representatives, and remarks that some representatives tended to give
their own opinions rather than consult with and give the views of the sector
they represent. The VSA stated the Herefordshire Partnership must take

31

37



h)

some responsibility for the performance of Ambition Groups. The CVS was
diverse, and different groups wanted different things. It was not always
possible to give a single view from the Sector. The VSA steering group
would welcome a meeting with Herefordshire Council staff who perhaps
have little awareness of the VSA. They wished to engage with them and
explain how the VSA can contribute. The Review Team was a little
surprised that the VSA was not fully aware of this situation.

We challenged the VSA to explain why other Local Authorities did not see
the merit of setting up VSAs. They had ongoing relationships with their
CVSs, which appeared to be satisfactory and were not in danger of
collapse. We were advised the VSA would not have been established in
Herefordshire without funding from the Government. Herefordshire Council
had not set up the VSA. It was seen as helpful that in Herefordshire there
was a single tier Council, and a coterminous Partnership which should
have made for better working relationships. The VSA pointed out that other
areas of the country spoke well of the Herefordshire Partnership and the
VSA. The VSA were leading in some ways.

The Review Team cannot recommend Council support for funding the VSA
in the short-term. We accept there is a need for an interface with the
Council, and this can be achieved in a number of ways, such as the
creation of new arrangements or by seeking to modify the VSA as it
currently operates. It would be helpful if the VSA were to obtain funding
from another external source in 2005/2006. The time could then be used to
consider how the Council wants to connect with the CVS and if appropriate
to negotiate a funding arrangement with effect from 2006/2007.

6.15 Infrastructure Organisations: Common Issues

a)

A standard interview challenge was to ask Infrastructure organisations if
there were any services provided by Herefordshire Council that could be
better provided by the CVS. (We also challenged Council officers to identify
services provided by Infrastructure organisations, which could be better
provided in-house). In summary the following areas were identified, and it
was suggested services could be delivered to the same or an improved
standard, but at a cheaper cost.

e Work that involves going out into the community (e.g. activities along
the lines of Planning for Real exercises).

Parish Plans work.

Administering the Voluntary Sector Grants Scheme.

Running the Herefordshire Council Delegated Grants Scheme.
Administering Market Towns Community Pride Grants.

Project Development.

Running the ARCH Scheme (an objective 2 European funding
programme).

Community Finance and Enterprise Officer.

Tenant Participation.

Rural Housing Enablement Officer.

Race Equality Service.

Community Development Coordinator.

32

38



b)

e Community Involvement Co-ordinator.
e Voluntary Sector Adult and Community Learning role.

The Review Team does not consider that the current location of the Race
Equality Service within Herefordshire Council offices is appropriate. The
Review Team recommends Herefordshire Council should ask the Race
Equality Partnership to consider transferring the Race Equality service to
the CVS. At least two Infrastructure organisations expressed interest in
providing this service. This can probably be best achieved by
commissioning the activity with an individual Infrastructure organisation, or
failing satisfactory agreement, by undertaking a market testing exercise.

The Review Team has doubts over some of the other suggestions. These
are:

e The ARCH scheme. This is a European funding project that has been
run by the Herefordshire Partnership since January 2003 and has two
years to run. The transfer of the responsibility to an Infrastructure
organisation would disrupt the existing management arrangements. In
addition an initial enquiry with Government Office West Midlands has
raised doubts they would be satisfied that any of the Infrastructure
organisations could meet the financial requirements of being the
Accountable Body.

e Tenant participation service. This highlighted an example of where an
Infrastructure organisation may not have appreciated tenant
participation work was no longer the responsibility of Herefordshire
Council’'s Strategic Housing Team, but that of registered landlords
(usually the Housing Associations). It is outside the Terms of Reference
for the Review Team to consider this option.

e The Community Finance and Enterprise Officer is employed in the CRT.
Much of the responsibilities of this post include advising the private
sector, particularly small businesses and social enterprises, as well as
the CVS. It is unclear if Infrastructure organisations are allowed under
their operating articles to undertake that part of the role. The Review
Team also consider it is important to base the post within a strategic,
rather than delivery organisation. In theory this post could be contracted
out with the CVS, as the postholder would act as an agent of the
Council. Seconding the post to the Voluntary Sector to carry out a "trial
run" might be a good idea to see if the arrangements actually work in
practice, before any formal transfer took place. We are advised,
however, that because of the nature of the post and role any transfer of
responsibilities would be subject to TUPE provision. This means that
the scope for savings to the Council is virtually non-existent.

e Delegated Grants scheme. Herefordshire Partnership badged staff, who
administer a range of grants involving both Council and external
funding, run this service. Grants are made to the public and private
sectors as well as the CVS. The Team is located within the CRT, which
underwent a Best Value review in 2002. This judged the overall service

33

39



as good, with promising prospects for improvement, and it is considered
too soon to undertake a market testing exercise.

e Voluntary Sector Grants scheme. The Review Team is not opposed in
principle to market testing of the scheme. The Review Team is
concerned however if it is appropriate for a local infrastructure body to
administer a scheme in which they themselves could be the
beneficiaries of Council funding. The Review Team feels there is an
inherent conflict of interest with such an arrangement.

e Project Development. The Project Development Team provides a
significant proportion of its time supporting the CVS, and in principle
there is no reason why this work should not be subject to market
testing. However the Project Development Team also works with the
private sector as well as the public sector. Infrastructure organisations
may not be allowed to work to support the private sector under their
articles of association. Herefordshire Council officers also work closely
with Project Development staff and these links would be weakened if
the work was undertaken elsewhere. It is recommended that the
possible obstacles to market testing be clarified. The Review Team is
however doubtful that outsourcing the work of the Project Development
Team will be cost effective, and does not consider this to be a high
priority.

e Shop Front Grants. This highlighted another example of where an
Infrastructure organisation may not have appreciated this was the
responsibility of the Market Towns Partnerships rather than the
Herefordshire Council. This is paid for with external funding. It is outside
the Terms of Reference for the Review Team to consider this option.
The Review Team noted however that the Market Towns Partnerships
have chosen to use the Delegated Grants Team to run the schemes on
their behalves. This may indicate that the Market Towns believe they
are getting value for money by using the Delegated Grants Team to
provide this service.

e Rural Housing Enablement Officer. The Review Team raised this
possibility with the Head of Strategic Housing. We established that they
have investigated this with neighbouring authorities who felt that a Rural
Housing Enablement Officer was a good idea in principle. For
Herefordshire, however, doubts remain as to the value of the post as
neighbouring authorities have not necessarily achieved any planning or
development work that they would not have without the post. The
Registered Social Landlords’ forum has given a verbal indication that
they do not see a strong need for an RHE Officer and cannot argue for
funding for a post. The Review Team is not convinced that the
appointment of an RHE Officer is justified. The Review Team
recommends that the Strategic Housing Department places more of a
rural focus into the job description of one of its current Housing Officers.

e Community Involvement Co-ordinator. The Community Involvement Co-
ordinator has traditionally been placed within the Herefordshire
Partnership Policy and Commissioning team, because of close working

34

40



with other Council Officers (such as Policy and Research, Social Services
and Housing). The post was heavily involved in the last Comprehensive
Performance Assessment of Herefordshire Council and is expected to be
similarly involved in the next CPA. The Co-ordinator will lead the Councils
progress towards its Community Involvement Strategy. The post is
primarily concerned with advising public sector organisations on
consultation and involvement. It is not a role that involves "hands on"
involvement work with local communities. The postholder is currently
working on advising partner organisations on appropriate consultation
arrangements for the review of the Herefordshire Plan. The postholder is
managed through a Community Management Team, including
Herefordshire Council, HVA and Community First. The Review Team
does not consider this post is best placed in the CVS.

CVS Adult and Community Learning role. In principle there may be
scope for placing part of this service with the CVS. However, the vast
majority of funding comes from external sources such as European funds
and the Learning and Skills Council. This funding is outside the scope of
the Review. The Review Team also notes that a substantial proportion of
adult learning activity is already contracted out. It is recommended that
the Herefordshire Council Lifelong Learning Development Unit considers
the scope for using the CVS to deliver a larger proportion of this activity.

d) The Review Team accepts that some services could be considered for
market testing. These are:

Work that involves going out into the community, e.g. community
surveys or activities along the lines of Planning for Real exercises.
Where the CVS has proven skills and experience it is recommended
that suitable parcels of work be tendered.

Parish Planning work. A Herefordshire Partnership officer, using funding
from the Countryside Agency, initially carried out this work. The funding
ceased some time ago and the post has since remained vacant. The
Review Team support market testing of this provision if additional
(possibly external) funding were to be made available. In such an event
at least two infrastructure organisations have expressed an interest in
providing the service.

Community Development Coordinator. The former Bromyard Voluntary
Action once employed a previous postholder. The post was brought in-
house following a budget exercise that demonstrated it was more cost
effective to directly employ the member of staff. The previous
postholder had also identified a conflict of interest between being based
with a delivery organisation as opposed to a strategic organisation. This
is presently a Herefordshire Partnership post, and agreement would
have to be reached with other partners for a market testing approach.

35

41



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

Conclusions

The CVS plays a vital role in Herefordshire and will continue to play an
increasingly important contribution in building strong and active communities in
the County.

Herefordshire Council should examine opportunities for the CVS to work at
increasing its role in public service delivery.

The sector is a vital link to socially excluded communities because they have
developed trust by filling the gaps between mainstream services.

It is not realistic to expect Herefordshire Council to continue to be the first port of
call for additional funding for the CVS. The majority of these organisations will
need to diversify their income streams so that they do not depend as extensively
on Herefordshire Council funding as they do at present.

Herefordshire Council is generous in the support it gives to the CVS, but the
amount of activity within the County provided by the CVS is significantly greater
than in other comparable Authorities.

Herefordshire Council officers, as individuals, rarely record in detail the amount
of time spent supporting the CVS.

There is no overall strategy in place for CVS support. As a result Council
Managers are not clear about the contribution of the CVS to meet Council
objectives.

Individual Council Departments usually fail to examine the scope for including
the CVS in delivering their strategies’ objectives.

Herefordshire Council Voluntary Sector Grants scheme has a number of failings
which suggest that the Council is not obtaining best value for money from the
current arrangements.

Herefordshire Council's SLAs are inconsistent, not specific, have hard to
measure outputs and are inadequately monitored and evaluated. In addition,
there is a doubt that the SLAs would stand up to legal challenge.

Herefordshire is not well served by having two separate Voluntary Action
organisations in the County. This leads to duplication of administrative
arrangements and an inconsistent service.

There is scope for considering the transfer of some Council services into the
CVS and for undertaking market testing exercises. In general, however, there
are limited activities where this is felt to be appropriate.

36

42



8.1

8.2

8.3

Review of Herefordshire Council Support to the CVS: Funding
Challenges

When this Review began it was not in the context of the funding challenges that
Herefordshire Council is currently facing. The Review Team has undertaken its
work on the assumption that the current levels of CVS funding would continue to
be available in the future. Our recommendations in the main report would lead to
the more effective and efficient use of this funding, but do not outline
recommendations to make cuts to CVS support. We wish however to comment
on the funding challenges for the Council and the CVS.

The Council could conclude that the CVS also needs to face some reduced
funding. If this were to be the case the Review Team strongly recommends that
this should not be done arbitrarily with, for example, an across the board
reduction. To do so could risk the financial collapse of at least one key
organisation.

If funding is reduced the Review Team recommends that this be done in stages,
as follows.

a) Suspension of the Voluntary Sector Grants scheme. This would achieve a
saving of up to approximately £160,000 per annum. In theory this would
have the least impact on the CVS, as grant funding was always intended to
be one-off support for new projects. We stress the words “in theory”, as the
review showed many organisations have become overly reliant on this
funding. However Age Concern receives funding of around £29,000 per
annum from the Voluntary Grants scheme. The Review Team did not
specifically look at this support as Age Concern is not an infrastructure
organisation nor does it have an SLA with the Council. It was therefore
outside the terms of reference of the review. A number of references were
made to us about the apparently disjointed structures of Age Concern in
Herefordshire. Support for Age Concern needs to be separately examined.

b) We have already recommended the withdrawal of CVALD funding of
approximately £10,000 per annum. This should be retained until a
Herefordshire wide Voluntary Action body is established and a new SLA
agreed using the funding currently allocated for HVA and CVALD. It should
be possible to agree an overall modest reduction, by negotiating with a
whole County Voluntary Action body, as there ought to be some economies
of scale.

c) Community First costs are thought to be excessive and a reduced level of
funding should be offered for the same level of service in relation to project
activity. Community First should agree to cost reductions or a reduction in
core funding support should be implemented. In such an event Community
First services should be put out to tender wherever possible.

d) The Review Team recommends that there be no reductions in funding to
the CAB. Indeed there is Review Team support for examining the scope for
increasing CAB funding in the short-term. This position should be reviewed
as part of an exercise to examine partnership working with CAB, ABLE and
Welfare Rights.

37

43



h)

The Welfare Rights Team has not provided evidence of value for money
from their service, and it is recommended this service be market tested if
partnership working with CAB, ABLE and Welfare Rights is not successful.

The Review Team recommends that there be no short-term reductions in
funding to HVA but that this position be reviewed as part of the intention to
support a single Countywide Voluntary Action body.

The Review Team recommends that there be no reduction in funding to
HCVYS. This body has demonstrated it offers value for money.

The Review Team recommends that there be no reduction in funding to
HALC, on the limited evidence we have that it offers a good service. The
Review team stresses that this recommendation is conditional on HALC
meeting the terms of its SLA. The Council should consider removal of
funding if HALC fails to comply fully with its SLA.

The Review Team recommends that there be no change to the SLA with
ALLIANCE. This 5-year SLA has only been in existence since the 1% April
2004, and it is inappropriate to alter an agreement so soon after signing.

38

44



APPENDIX 1

STRATEGIC MONITORING COMMITTEE 9th February, 2004

COMMUNITY FIRST FUNDING SUPPORT

Report By: Director of Policy and Community

Wards Affected

County-wide
Purpose

1. To propose a means of reviewing the funding support for Community First within the
context of an overall review of the support to the voluntary sector in Herefordshire.

Considerations

2. At its last meeting the Strategic Monitoring Committee proposed reviewing the funding
support for Community First. Community First is an “infrastructure body” spanning both
Herefordshire and Worcestershire. It has worked closely with the former development
agency network and continues to work with Herefordshire Voluntary Action and Ledbury
Voluntary Action.

3. In March of 2003 the Social and Economic Development Scrutiny Committee agreed terms
of reference for a review of the support to the Voluntary Sector provided by Herefordshire
Council (copy of report attached at Appendix 1). It was understood that this was a cross-
cutting review, going beyond the administration of grants, and would therefore need to
report back in to Strategic Monitoring Committee.

4. A large amount of data including face-to-face interviews with many of the bodies was
conducted during 2003. Since the original review team was nominated there have been
significant staff changes and it is now proposed that the review is undertaken by graduate
placements located in the Policy Team working to the original review team as a steering
group. This model is similar to that adopted for the cross-cutting transport review. It
significantly reduced the administrative burden and simplified the process and shortened
the timescale. The review will contain all the elements of the Best Value Review
Guidelines.

5. Opportunities will be provided for those bodies, particularly the infrastructure bodies to be
questioned and challenged on the value and impact of their work. It would be appropriate
to deal with Community First through this mechanism along with like bodies.

6. A detailed timetable was being prepared. This will cover the period February to the end of
June. Further reports would be made to the Strategic Monitoring Committee at critical
stages in the Review.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Jane Jones, Director of Policy and Community on (01432) 260042



RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Committee agrees:

(a) that the change in approach to the structure of the Review is
agreed;

and

(b) that Community First be included in the Review along with other
infrastructure bodies.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None identified.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Jane Jones, Director of Policy and Community on (01432) 260042



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 17TH MARCH, 2003
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

REVIEW OF COUNCIL SUPPORT TO THE VOLUNTARY
SECTOR

Report By: Director of Policy and Community

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose
1. To seek Members views on the scope of the review of the Voluntary Sector.

Considerations

2. Some work was undertaken at the end of 2001 to establish the extent of the Council’s
support to the voluntary sector; as to review just one grant scheme in isolation would be
unproductive. The support given encompasses the Voluntary Sector Grants Scheme,
Community Building Grants Scheme, childcare grants, a variety of Service Agreements,
accommodation provision, NNDR relief, payroll facilities and occasional one-off grants from
within service budgets. In addition there are opportunities to support volunteering within the
county both through publicity of volunteering opportunities and support council employees
in becoming active volunteers.

3. Following the Policy & Community Directorate restructuring in 2002, responsibility for
management and operation of the Voluntary Sector Grants scheme has transferred to the
Local Development Team, and it is now proposed to progress the review. As Voluntary
Sector Grant decision for the 2003/04 financial year have to be made before the end of
March to give applicants some financial planning time, it has been necessary to operate the
Scheme under existing arrangements, making only a few basic amendments to the
application form, and the assessment form. However, it is proposed that any
recommendations arising from the review be implemented for 2004/05.

4. Scope

The review will seek to:
e Clarify the reasons for supporting the voluntary sector.
¢ Clarify the distinction between grants and payments for services.

e Produce a strategic funding document that clearly identifies the relative priorities of the
services/strategies the council wishes to support through this service.

e Strengthen monitoring arrangements.
e Explore the scope/demand for provision of support services at marginal cost.

o Clarification of the respective roles of development support, assessment and decision-
making.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Jane Jones, Director of Policy and Community on (01432) 260042



e Establish clear and accessible application, assessment, decision-making and
monitoring processes.

e Ensure the involvement of the voluntary sector in decision making (i.e. the
establishment of criteria, procedures, policies and priorities).

e Ensure a consistent approach towards supporting the voluntary sector across the
Council.

5. The Review Team is:

Social and Economic Development Scrutiny: Clir Guthrie, Clir Stockton
Voluntary Sector Grants Panel: Clir Rees Mills

Local Development Team: Local Development Manager, Penny Jones
Local Development Admin Support & Grants Assist, Hannah McSherry
Community Development Officer, Annie Brookes

Regeneration Coordinator, Glyn West

Parish Liaison & Local Development Officer, Dorothy Coleman

Reps from relevant Herefordshire Plan (Ambition Groups)

Voluntary Sector Reps: (To be advised)

Audit/Treasurers: Principal Audit Manager, Tony Ford

Social Services: Project Manager, Leslie Libetta

RECOMMENDATION

THAT Members’ views are requested.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

. None

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Jane Jones, Director of Policy and Community on (01432) 260042

#3



APPENDIX 2

Membership of the Review Team

Councillor from the Voluntary Sector Grants Panel:
Councillor Rees Mills

Councillors from the Social and Economic Development Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Mrs Sylvia Daniels
Councillor John Stone

Core Review Team:

Glyn West, Senior Partnership Policy Officer (Lead Officer)
Ed Hughes, Regeneration Officer
Catherine Winsor, Personal Secretary to Head of Service

Officer Group:

Annie Brookes, Community Development Officer

Julie Brown, Assistant Accountant

Jean Howard, PCT

Penny Jones, Community Regeneration Manager

Hannah McSherry, previously Parish Council Liaison and Community
Regeneration Officer

Shane Smith, Community Regeneration Support and Grants Assistant

Karen Stanton, Community Development Coordinator

Christine Wright, Principal Lawyer



APPENDIX 3

Scope of the Review

Review the services provided by the main Infrastructure organisations. This will
include bodies such as Community First, Herefordshire Voluntary Action, Ledbury
Voluntary Action, HCCA, Citizen’s Advice Bureaux, HCVYS and those not for profit
organisations with whom the Council has Service Level Agreements (SLAs).

Contrast the differences between services provided both from direct grant awards and
through SLAs to help form a view on value for money from these different
arrangements. Establish guidelines when it would be appropriate to use either funding
mechanism. This will consider the implications for levering in additional funding, and
agreeing the basis for calculating management costs.

Examine the current management arrangements for the operation of the Voluntary
Sector Grants scheme. The Review will involve the Voluntary Sector with particular
reference to consistent application forms, criteria for grants, long term project
sustainability without on-going grant awards, policies, priorities, and procedures
including decision making arrangements.

Establish clear and consistent monitoring arrangements of Voluntary Sector Grant
awards and SLAs throughout the Council.

Investigate the added value implications of whether services currently supported by
grant awards are better provided in-house or if existing in-house services might be
better provided by the Voluntary Sector.

Detail the overall funding made available to the Voluntary Sector by the Council, and
will include in kind contributions. Grants related to direct social services care will not
be covered by the Review.

Compare the extent of Voluntary Sector Grant support and the way it operates in
Herefordshire against our Benchmarking Authorities.

Undertake a literature search to identify models of Best Practice.

Funding for the Voluntary Sector from third party sources such as Single Regeneration
Budget or Objective 2 funding will not be covered by the Review.

Funding support for Parish Councils will not be covered by the Review.
Consider support arrangements for the Voluntary Sector Assembly.

Recommend options for Voluntary Sector Grant support in the future.



Timescale
The review will be completed by the end of September 2004.

Data collection will take around three months, but the Review will continue in parallel with
this process.

An initial session will be held with appropriate representatives of the Voluntary Sector to
outline:

1. The scope of the review.
2. The conduct of the review.
3. The timetable for the review.

Around August a second larger session will be held with the voluntary sector to outline
work to date and set out our findings. There will be a final session in mid September to
present the draft report.

The Review Process

The Review Team will report to Geoff Cole, Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for
Life, who will receive progress reports, and agree the Review Team work programme.

Whilst this is not a formal Best Value Review it will cover key elements of the Best Value
review guidelines. It will establish a baseline and rigorously challenge existing patterns of
service, using a series of structured interviews. The Review Team will consult with
stakeholders and compare provision with that available in similar rural counties. Every
stage of the review will be thoroughly documented and demonstrate that the Review has
been properly conducted and that its outcomes are founded on an informed and robust
process.

Face to face interviews will be conducted with representatives of key infrastructure
organisations and other key stakeholders.

Review Team membership

The Review team will be small and lead by Glyn West, with support from Catherine Winsor
and Ed Hughes. Annie Brookes will act as the Community Regeneration Team contact.
Other officers will be co-opted as required. Directorates will identify named individual
contact to help facilitate the Review.

24.03.04



"10jo8s Aiejunjo) pue saiuedwod ‘sjenpiaipul 0] usaib asoy) buipnjour ‘sjuelb jje uoj [ejo} sjewiixoiddy #

oy

Ajuo eoeds 20140

c0'c3 1803 0C'¢3 GOZ'L8 0S0°G¥Z3 066°G93 001613 (50/7002) ubnoiog Aejlep auihig
70'0L3 # 003 79'63 /11'6V 000°00G3 # 000°023 000°0873 oS usp3g
euqwn)
1693 03 1693 210°€9 000°0L¥3 03 000°0L¥3 ousIg yimusd
[AAK] 03 cC'03 281°90G 000°LL1L3 03 000°L 113 Aunog |[lemuio
llemuio)
v 03 03 vy 03 /672G 000°€C3 03 000°€C3 JouIsIq yuoubplg
aaysdouys
0C'C3 9803 GE'L3 vy €9l 000°09€3 000°0V1L3 000°02Z3 ybnolog ynowsuinog
JasioQ
8L V3 03 8LV3 9/0°L L1 091°1€G3 03 091°1€G3 A9 Jeyex3
0€'v3 03 0€'v3 /169 000°00€3 03 000°00€3 oS uoAsQ PIN
uoAaqQ
s|1ounoj ybnouiog pue jo113siqg ‘Ajuno)
8C'LC3 6103 60°LC3 vGE9Cl rANWAZ A 000°VC3 « rANVRTA AR sAmod
8L'L3 03 8L'13 79G'881 0/G'9€€3 e/N 0/G'9€€3 }osJsWogs YUON
19°G3 03 1963 L¥9'G¥e €86°L.E°13 03 €86°L.E°L3 3J1ysIa}sadno|o ynos
19,3 783 LL'C3 c8Y vl 000°00L°L3 0000023 000°00%3 allysxiag 1sep\
0G'C3 /003 (A GZE'8G 1 00G°G6EF 005013 000°G8E3 UDSIAA @ PIOJIS L
18°L3 62’13 €G°93 128'VLL Gly'99¢°L3 vve'see3 LLO‘LYL L3 allysp.iojaisHy
sanuoyiny Asejun
(llesanQ)  |(pury up) peay (yse9) (snsua) 1002) | ¥0/£0 Hoddns | +0/€0 Hoddng |+0/c0 Hoddng
peay Jad puadg| Jad puadg |peayJad puadg| uonendod SA [BloL pury uj SA ysed SA aweN Aluoyiny |eooT]

¥ XION3ddV

a|qel s}insay Bunjiewyouag

52



Juo)

yA4

92°03 00£°6213 20°03 009°L3 €V'03 v81°0223 Ly'03 vG8'6ET3 281°90S (099 "1oul) eYRY OUd

03 03 03 8€'03 7183 €51L°C AloS 30O sals|

9103 000013 0103 00193 8Y'03 000°0€3 8Y'03 000°0€3 210'c9 ousIg yimued

03 03 03 603 00023 60508 pusIq llemulo) YUoN

0103 00€'83 003 00213 /003 /G6'G3 6503 991 L¥3 6¥9'6. jolasig uopelsed

[AAK; 000°L 113 03 9€'03 /2217813 /103 7/8'€83 281905 Aunog |lemulo))

llemuio)

s|1Iouno) ybnoiog pue jo13s1q ‘Ajuno)

VL3 v9Z Vi3 03 9€'03 000'GE3 7603 000°263 8€8°'/6 uojbulieg

G903 000°0013 7103 006'023 €903 GE1'963 €L03 091°C113 678°CG1 allysujodoui yuonN

G8'L3 0€E'6VE3 7103 G6.°GC3 0003 0093 /G503 0%70°2013 79G'881 }esiswog YuoN

6503 651283 91°03 128°123 8203 00¥°'6€3 G8°03 000°8L 13 882°8¢| 8J00d

613 891'€0€3 0¥0'691 jesiswog jse3 YUON B yied

G803 615°8V13 8E°03 18.°993 0L°03 9.0°2Z13 6,03 062°LE13 LL8'VLL (1) a1yspuojaiaH

0903 120113 v8¢'8l (ea1e QTVAD) da1UspiojeioH

0,03 (0600413 /859G (ea1e YAH) adlysplojoloH

sanuoyny Asepun

pesay /€00 buipun4 peay | 0/c0 Hoddng | peay ¥0/€0 pesay ¥0/€0 (snsuad L007) aweN Ajuoyiny (8007
Jad awayosg Juels) Jad [1Iouno) Jad poddng SAD Jad uoddng xneaing uone|ndod

puadg | Jojoag Aiejunjop | puadg Alunwwon puadg |/ uonoy Alejunjop| puadsg 9OIAPY SuUazin

S XION3ddV

(suonesiuebiQ ainjoniseaju]) ajgel jnsay Buytewyosuag

53



514

‘ojewnsa ejel oid e asn 0} ajeridoidde 38} J0u sem I pue asuodsal [I9UNo) 10LISIg duo Ajuo
pey am elquing Jo 8sed ay} U] ‘sainbiy asay) Je aALIR 0] Suolje|nNd|ed ejel 0dd pasn alojeliay] dABY S\\ “pPUBAqUINYMON Wol) / JO 1IN0
sulnjaJ G paule}qo am ajdwexa 104 "SalunNoy palddIas ay} UIYIIM S|1ouno) Jo1ISIg 8y} ||e wols sainbly uiejqo 0y 9|qissod Jou Sem }| :8}0N

/103 000013 0003 0G.3 1003 00023 1203 089193 L01°2VS ejey 0id a11Iysia}SadlopA

79°03 698'063 0003 0023 03 L 03 08¥'2013 €.1°€8¢2 ejey oid aiysdoiys

7S €3 0¥9°GoV3 c0'03 00023 9203 0¥9'v€3 LLL3 cLz'orL3 061°20€ Bjey 0id pueliaquinylioN

cv'03 v2S €913 103 03 0103 000°013 6613 0622223 086°'06€ eley 0id 18sioQ

L AE] G29'Gee3 1003 0S1°1L3 0203 000°L€3 /903 0S1v013 €6v'10. Bley 0id uoAs(Q

03 0¥'03 000023 [AAE] 000113 6503 022’623 111°6Y lysig usp3

eLquing

‘Juo9 sjIouno) ybnoliog pue ou3sig ‘Ayunon

peay ¥/€00z Buipun4 | pesy [40/c0 Hoddng | peay ¥0/€0 peay ¥0/€0 (snsuad 1007) aweN Ajioyny (007

Jad awayos juels Jad [1Iouno0D Jad poddng SAD Jad uoddng xneaing uonendod

puadg |[Jojoag Aiejunjop | puads Alunwwon puads |/ uonoy Asejunjop| puads 9OIAPY Suaznin

54



6v

Juod
J10}08s Alejunjoa ayj 0} Joddns jou pue syS Buliojiuow Jo 1S09 uonessiuiWpE Sem SIU) )8} suonesiuebio ainjonisequ) ,
‘sleaA ainny 1o} Buipuny pasjuelent jou pue y1S Buiobuo jo ped jou pue poddns Jo-suQ#
€60°CTL3 (€6G°L3 G0/¥002 SWl} JSJIHO « pun-uj S|1IdUNoY |ed07]
00S‘0L3 G0/¥002 Juswoalby |oA97 92IAI8S JO UoIjeId0SSY allYySplojalaH
L20‘LL3 |LOV3 0/€00¢ 91|13l ajel ssauisng ysed jo1381Q pue Ainqpa
029013 G0/¥002 JuswWoalIby |oA97 92IAI8S uonoy Alejunjop AJlunwiwo)
Gev'ly3 (00083 #0/£00¢| ®Waydg jueis 10}oas Asejun|jop jueso S92IAIaS YnoA Asejunjop
GZY'6E3 S0/¥002 Juswealby diysieuped| juswoalby |oA97 92IAI8S Jo} |1I9uno) allysp.ojaiaH
182°993 |L0V3 ¥0/€002 Jol|al 8jel ssauisng yseo
0€9°913 G0/¥00¢ sbuipjing Ajunwwod| jusweasiby [9A9T BDIAIES
0S.'6V3 SG0/¥00Z JusWaaIbY [9A87] BIIAISS ¥si14 Ajunwwo))
GS0°LLL3 (0193 0/€00¢ 91|13l ajel ssauisng ysed
G963 G0/¥00¢ jual paonpay puB-uj
00S°'C3 ¥0/€00¢ JuswAed poddns eix3 jueio
000°G3 G0/¥00¢ Sueld Yslied| juswaalby [9Ae7 80IAI8S
086°L0L3 G0/¥00¢ Juswaalby [9A87] 80INIBS uonoy Asejunjop allyspiojaiay
062°LE1L3F |9993 ¥0/€002 Jol|al 8jel ssauisng yseo
00G°23 G0/¥00¢ jual paonpay puB-uj
00013 ¥0/€002 yswAed poddns enx3 # Jueio
000023 ¥0/€00C JuswAed poddns enx3 # juelo
V.63 G0/¥00¢ sojel yoddns | | 8|qelnoAe pun-u|
0SL'v013 G0/¥002 JuswaaIby [9A87] dIIAISS Xneaing 32IApY suazniy
|ejol| junowy Jea 1eyaqg yoddng jo adA} uonesiuebip

9 XIAN3ddV

uonesiueblip Aq uoddng auljaseg |ejo ]

55



0s

00S°GL3 |00G'GL3 G0/¥00c Juswaalby diysiouped| juswsslby [9A87 80IAISS suQ 03 ’suQ
6¢9°6L3 |000°G3 G0/¥00c ueio

629'VL3 G0/¥00cC swn Jedyjo pu-uj 1ojoag Aiejun|op - sasuidisjug |e1oog
Gl9°'6€3 |000'VL3 G0/¥00c JusWdaIby [9A87 8OIAIBS

619623 G0/¥002 Juswealby Aousaby 1SOH| juswaalby [9A9T] 92IAI8S Auedwos eipoj |eany
000°0S3 |000°0S3 G0/¥00Z| 8waydg sbuip|ing Ajunwwo) ueio sBulpjing Ajjunwwo9 snolep
000°0S3 |000°0S3 S0/v00¢ Juswaalby |9A87 80IAIBS suopesiuebiQ ainyn) @ SUY snouep
G06°,63 |S06°/63 G0/¥00¢ uel 1ojoag Ajlunwwod 1 Asejunjop a4 yinos
9LY'vS93 0S2° L3 ¥0/€00¢ $8INSO|D pedY 33l pup-uj

0€.'Z3 ¥0/£002 (wooy adoyjoop) puI-U|

allH wooy a|geinoAe

00023 G0/¥00¢ yolesssy pu-uj

€L123 GO/¥00g| @wil 82O - Buloyuo VIS pu-uj

19223 G0/¥00cC awi| 1921O - Yoddns v1S pu-uj

000°v3 #0/£00¢| S1S0O epuaby [1ouno) paonpay pu-uj

LIV V3 G0/¥00c $8]eY 8l W00y 8|qeinoAe pu-uj

9¥8'Ge3 S0/¥00¢ uononNpay jusy pup-uj

005°L€3 G0/¥002 (dH) swn 492110 puI-U|

00G°€€3 S0/v00¢ pund sjosloid |[lews uelio

2SC'8LL3 S0/v00¢ yoddng 1HD pup-uj

6L5'8VL3 G0/¥00Z|2Wwayos sjuels) 10j08g Alejun|op el suoljesiuebliQ }130id-104-30N Buipnjoul

v16°2L.23 ¥#0/€00¢ J91|9Y djey ssauisng yseo suonesiuebiQ 10309g Ajlunwwo @ Aiejunjop

|elol junowy Jea )\ |leyaqg Joddng jo adA) uonesiuebiQ

56



1S

‘uone/ndod jo peay Jad z(:0F Sjussaidal pue aainies sad 0G6F uey) SSa| SI yoiym usaib poddns epnjoul jou seop 8jqe} SiyJ

61713 uoljejndod jo peay 1ad puadg
LL8VLL SNsuad L00g = uolje|ndod
v€6°29€°1L3 jejol
0563 0563 $0/£002 Ke@ uoneonp3 pue wnio4 JUBID[  WINJIO4 UOI}EONPT [EJUSWUOIIAUT dIYSPI0JaI19H
002°L3 |00Z'L3 ¥0/€00¢ abiey ||oihed paonpay pu-uj aNIN
vSS'L3  |[VGSL3 G0/¥002 JusWwaaIbY [9A87] 9DIAISS anua) 1| Alunwwo) ssoy
000v3 |000'v3 G0/¥00C ueo wniog buluuim] umo] ailyspiojaiaH
00S‘v3  |00S'v3 G0/¥002 JuswaaIbY [9A87 9DIAIS uiM Apealg Apeay
00S‘v3  |00S'v3 G0/¥002 JuswaaIby [9A87] 9DIAIS [19uUno9 suodg allysp.lojalaH
00063 |000't3 G0/¥00¢C puB-ul
000°G3 G0/00C Jueio Ky2190g A10}SIH UBLIO)DIA
0S2°0L3 [0S2013 S0/¥002 Juasaud je aoe(d Ul jou S|  Juswaalby |aAa] BoINBS ainjng unQ 0} WO\
0S.€L3 (0SL°€L3 G0/¥002 JuswaaIby [9A87] 9DIAISS OHO3
|elol junowy Jea )\ |leyaqg Joddng jo adA) uonesiuebiQ

57



Interviews held with Council Officers

APPENDIX 7

Council Officer Date Council Officer Date

Stuart Gent 21/06/04 | lan Hyson 05/08/04
Head of Property Services, County Treasurer
Environment
Geoff Hughes 23/06/04 | Deborah Allison 02/08/04
Head of Community & Economic Arts Liaison Officer
Development Policy & Community
Policy & Community
Alan Blundell 25/06/04 | Henry Lewis 11/08/04
Head of Policy & Communication Head of Social Care (Children)
Policy & Community Social Care & Strategic Housing
Jane Jones 28/06/04 | Mark Warren 12/08/04
Director of Policy & Community Head of Customer Services &

Libraries, Policy & Community
Geoff Cole 30/06/04 | Natalia Silver 16/08/04
Head of Culture, Leisure & Education Cultural Services Manager
for Life, Policy & Community Policy & Community
Jon Ralph 05/07/04 | Alan Ronald 17/08/04
Community Youth Service Manager Economic Investment & Development
Policy & Community Officer (Property & Information)

Policy & Community
Hannah McSherry 07/07/04 | Mary Burton & Sue Lloyd 19/08/04
Parish Council Liaison & Com Local Agenda 21 Officer
Regeneration Officer Environment
Policy & Community
Nina Bridges/Lyn Bright 07/07/04 | Kate Andrew 20/08/04
SRB Programme Manager Principal Heritage Officer
Policy & Community Policy & Community
Andy Tector 07/07/04 | Sara Burch 24/08/04
Head of Environmental Health & Community Finance & Enterprise
Trading Standard Officer
Environment Policy & Community
Carol Trachonitis 09/07/04 | Isobel Gibson 07/09/04
External Liaison Co-ordinator Principal Research Officer
Policy & Community Policy & Community
Annie Brookes 14/07/04 | Richard Ball 10/09/04
Community Dev Officer Transportation Manager
Policy & Community Environment
Jan Perridge 15/07/04 | Ruth Sinfield 13/09/04
Senior Sports Dev Officer Early Years & Childcare Service
Policy & Community Manager, Education
Julie Holmes/Sandra Silcox 15/07/04 | Mike Fry 13/09/04
Head of ICT Welfare Rights Manager
Policy & Community Social Care & Strategic Housing
Stephen Oates 15/07/04 | Colin Birks 15/09/04
Head of Highways & Transportation Property Services Manager
Environment Environment
Tracy Ricketts 28/07/04 | Penny Jones 20/09/04
Regeneration Co-ordinator (Grants & Community Regeneration Manager
Programmes), Herefordshire Policy & Community
Partnership, Policy & Community
Jonathan Riches 29/07/04 | Sue Fiennes 22/09/04
Programme Officer (Mon) Director of Social Care & Strategic
Herefordshire Partnership Housing
Policy & Community
Stephanie Canham 03/08/04 | Richard Gabb 14/10/04

Head of Social Care (Adults)
Social Care & Strategic Housing

Head of Strategic Housing
Social Care & Strategic Housing

58




APPENDIX 8

Interviews held with Infrastructure Organisations

Organisation Date
Community Voluntary Action — Ledbury and District 04/08/04
Herefordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services 24/08/04
*Citizens Advice Bureaux 03/09/04
Herefordshire Association of Local Councils 09/09/04
Community First 16/09/04
Herefordshire Voluntary Action 21/09/04
*ABLE 05/10/04
*Voluntary Sector Assembly 19/10/04

* These are not technically infrastructure organisations as defined by this Review.

Alliance provided answers to questions submitted to them by the Review Team, but the
organisation was not interviewed.




APPENDIX 9

Standard Council Officer Questionnaire

Review of Herefordshire Council Support to the Voluntary Sector

Questionnaire — Heads of Service

1. Voluntary Sector Support — “Cash” and “In Kind”

Attached is a table which lists the information collected from your division. Can you
confirm for 2004/05:

a) The information is correct.
b) Any additions to the information.
c) Any changes which will be made this financial year.

Examples of in kind support may include office space, staff time, or reduced rates
for room hire.

d) Why do you give grants rather than enter into service level agreements?
e) In your opinion, what would be the effect on the organisation of the division:

e Removing all funding to the Voluntary Sector.
e Giving less funding to the Voluntary Sector.

f) How do you ensure that Voluntary Sector bodies offer value for money? This
question may be better answered by Service Manager or officer dealing.

g) Do you have any elements of competition or tendering for the Voluntary Sector
bodies?

e |If yes, please give details.
¢ |If no, please explain why.

h) In your opinion, are there any areas of work currently funded through Voluntary
Sector bodies that could be carried out by staff within the division?

i) In respect of in kind support, what arrangements are in place for recording:

e Category of organisation (e.g. Council/voluntary & community
sector/charity/businesses/private) for room hire, for example.

e Take up of in kind support, e.g. how many times a year a room is hired
out at a favourable rate.

e Officer time spent on advising and supporting.



2. Voluntary Sector Support — Service Level Agreements

Attached is a table which lists the information collected from your division. Can you
confirm for 2004/05:

a) The information is correct.

b) Any additions to the information.

c) Any changes which will be made this financial year.

d) In general, do you believe that SLAs are a better option than grants?
e Yesorno. Please give reasons.

e) Are you satisfied with the procedures in place for monitoring SLAs?
e Yesorno. Please give details.

f) What do you consider to be the key elements of an SLA?

3. Voluntary Sector Support — Infrastructure Bodies
a) How many infrastructure bodies receive financial or in kind support?
(Community First, Herefordshire Voluntary Action, Community Voluntary Action
Ledbury and District, ALLIANCE (formerly HCCA), Citizen’s Advice Bureaux,
HCVYS)
b) In your opinion do you receive value for money from these organisations?

e Yes orno. Please give details.

c) How do you assess their management costs, generally what percentage are they?

Notes

The following types of support are not included in this questionnaire
e Grants related to direct social services care
e Funding support for Parish Councils

e Funding for the voluntary sector from third party sources such as Single
Regeneration Budget or Objective 2 funding.



Voluntary Sector Grants Scheme Awards 2002-2004

APPENDIX 10

Grant Awards
Total Sum Awarded 2002
Organisations 2002 2003 2004 - 2004

Age Concern £26,500.00] £29,000.00] £29,000.00 £84,500.00
Basement Youth Trust £1,000.00 £1,000.00
Caring for Gods Acre £1,000.00 £1,500.00 £605.00 £3,105.00
Close House Project £3,250.00 £3,250.00
Community Voluntary Action - Ledbury £3,500.00, £3,269.00 £3,481.00 £10,250.00
Coningsby Medieval Museum £500.00 £500.00
CRUSE Bereavement Care £300.00 £300.00 £600.00
Deaf Direct £6,500.00 £6,500.00
Double Take £250.00 £250.00
ECHO £780.00, £2,000.00 £2,780.00
Farming and Wildlife Advisory Group
(FWAG) £3,000.00, £1,000.00 £500.00 £4,500.00
Friends of Dore Abbey £500.00 £750.00 £1,250.00
Full House Furniture and Recycling
Service £7,500.00 £7,500.00 £15,000.00
Gorsley Pre-School £1,000.00 £1,000.00
HCVYS £10,000.00 £8,000.00; £8,000.00 £26,000.00
Hereford & District Disabled Swimming
Club £250.00 £250.00 £500.00
Hereford Access for All £400.00 £400.00
Hereford Basketball Development
Group £200.00 £200.00
Hereford City Partnership £1,500.00 £1,500.00
Hereford Guild of Guides £300.00 £300.00 £300.00 £900.00
Hereford Police Male Choir £500.00 £500.00 £1,000.00
Hereford Sub-Aqua Club £200.00 £200.00
Hereford Three Choirs Festival Fringe £3,000.00 £3,000.00
Herefordshire and Worcestershire RIGS
Group £350.00 £350.00
Herefordshire Association for the Blind £5,000.00 £6,500.00 £6,600.00 £18,100.00
Herefordshire Citizens Advocacy Now £6,000.00, £7,000.00 £6,000.00 £19,000.00
Herefordshire Community Council £500.00 £500.00 £1,000.00
Herefordshire DIAL £3,000.00 £3,000.00
Herefordshire Headway £500.00 £500.00
Herefordshire Heartstart £1,000.00 £1,000.00
Herefordshire Homestart £3,000.00 £3,500.00 £4,000.00 £10,500.00
Herefordshire Kite Association £500.00 £500.00 £500.00 £1,500.00
Herefordshire LORE £700.00 £700.00
Herefordshire Music, Speech and
Drama Festival £500.00 £500.00
Herefordshire Nature Trust £500.00 £500.00
Herefordshire Photography Festival -
Exposure £3,000.00 £5,000.00; £5,000.00 £13,000.00
Herefordshire Victim Support £1,500.00 £1,750.00 £2,000.00 £5,250.00
Jumpstart £1,000.00 £1,200.00; £4,000.00 £6,200.00
Kids Club @ Luston £500.00 £500.00




Grant Awards

Total Sum Awarded 2002

Organisations 2002 2003 2004 - 2004

Kidz First £2,500.00, £5,640.00 £8,140.00
Kington and District Museum £450.00 £500.00 £2,000.00 £2,950.00
Kington Festival Association £750.00 £1,500.00 £2,250.00
Kington Multipurpose Day Centre £450.00 £450.00
Kington Tourism Group £1,000.00 £1,000.00 £2,000.00
Landscape Recording Association £1,200.00 £1,500.00 £1,500.00 £4,200.00
Ledbury Day Centre £1,500.00, £2,000.00; £2,000.00 £5,500.00
Ledbury Poetry Festival £2,000.00, £5,000.00; £5,000.00 £12,000.00

In Kind

Contribution -
Ledbury Youth First £5,000.00] £5,000.00(0ffice Space £10,000.00
Leominster Choral Society £300.00 £300.00
Leominster Festival of the Arts £4,000.00 £5,000.00 £5,000.00 £14,000.00
Leominster Folk Museum £500.00 £550.00, £2,000.00 £3,050.00
Leominster Money Box Credit Union £4,000.00 £4,400.00, £7,500.00 £15,900.00
Lion Ballroom £2,500.00, £4,000.00 £6,500.00
Madley Festival £850.00 £850.00
Marcher Apple Network £750.00 £500.00 £300.00 £1,550.00
Marches Family Network £4,750.00, £5,300.00; £8,000.00 £18,050.00
Music and Dance Education - MADE £500.00 £600.00 £600.00 £1,700.00
New Theatre Works £2,500.00 £3,000.00 £2,250.00 £7,750.00
Newton Farm Community Association £470.00 £470.00
Nightjar Music £1,100.00, £1,300.00; £1,500.00 £3,900.00
North Herefordshire (Leominster) Shop
Mobility £2,500.00, £3,500.00] £4,500.00 £10,500.00
Out and About Transport -
Herefordshire Mind £750.00 £750.00
Pentabus Theatre £2,000.00, £2,000.00 £4,000.00
Presteigne Festival of Music and the
Arts £500.00 £700.00, £1,500.00 £2,700.00
Riding for the Disabled Association £500.00 £500.00
Ross-on-Wye Choral Society £200.00 £200.00
Samaritans £800.00 £800.00
Shelter £250.00 £250.00
Stapleton Heritage Group £500.00 £500.00
Take A Break £2,000.00, £3,000.00 £5,000.00
Teme Valley Youth Project £5,000.00, £5,500.00; £8,000.00 £18,500.00
The Music Pool £10,000.00 £12,000.00; £15,000.00 £37,000.00
The Nimbus Foundation £500.00 £500.00
Tudorville Residents Association £500.00 £500.00
Two Faced Dance Company £750.00 £750.00
Unity Garden £1,750.00, £1,200.00 £2,950.00
Waterworks Museum £1,000.00, £1,000.00 £500.00 £2,500.00
Woolgatherers £2,000.00 £1,000.00 £3,000.00
Workers Education Association £500.00 £300.00 £800.00
WRVS £4,000.00, £6,000.00; £4,000.00 £14,000.00
Wye Valley Chamber Music £1,000.00 £500.00 1500
Xtreme Youth Project £2,500.00 £3,500.00 6000
TOTAL £154,020.00/£161,849.00/£168,626.00 £484,495.00




APPENDIX 11

Eligibility Criteria for Voluntary Sector Grants Scheme 2004 — 2005

All applicant organisations must satisfy the following grant criteria - the Herefordshire Council may
apply conditions on successful applications in individual categories of grant aid if it deems it
appropriate.

1. Applications will only be considered for assistance towards activities/facilities operating
within, or for the benefit of residents of, Herefordshire.

2. Applicants must show that the activity/facility is consistent with the Herefordshire
Partnerships ambitions as set out in the Herefordshire Plan (enclosed).

3. National organisations must show either that there will be direct benefit to the County of
Herefordshire or that benefit will accrue to the public at large (including, directly or
indirectly, members of this community).

Applications will not be considered from organisations set up for profit making activities.
Applications for funding towards capital expenditure are not be eligible.

Local need for the activity/facility must be justified, and the benefit to local people

demonstrated.
7. Where relevant, applicants must demonstrate the degree of local support for the proposal
and that funds have been raised locally.
8. The activity must not seek to promote or oppose a political party or religious denomination.
9. Applications from individuals will not be eligible.

10. Applicants must have an appropriate constitution.

11. Proper accounts must be kept and be available for inspection by Herefordshire Council
staff.

12. Applicants must show how the success/development of the activity/facility will be
measured.

13. The Council will not consider applications from organisations which could be reasonably
expected to fund their activities or needs from members’ subscriptions or other sources or
which have substantial cash balances which are not being used to fund activities.

14. ‘In kind’ support will be taken into account where it can be clearly audited. Herefordshire
Council currently suggest a value of £8.70 per hour for volunteer time given in kind.

15. All applicants will need to include a summary setting out their management arrangements,
user involvement, frequency of meetings, an outline of their equal opportunities practice
and any other relevant information. A copy of the organisation’s most recent bank
statement, balance sheet and accounts must accompany applications.

16. The Council must have legal powers to fund the activity/facility you are proposing. If you
submit a proposal which the Council does not have the power to fund, we will advise you of
this.

17. If funding is awarded it will be released in two instalments. 75% will be released upon
acceptance of the grant offer and the conditions attached to the offer. The final 25% will be
released upon receipt of a complete and comprehensive final report. A final report will be
enclosed with each grant offer letter.

18. Applicants that received funding in 2003/2004 will not be eligible for further funding unless
they have fully complied with the conditions outlined in their offer letter.

19. All funding must be claimed by the 31% March 2005. Any funding that has not been claimed
by this date will be withdrawn.



69

- " papiroid Jayeuraiay se ao1jou

UO pauiwis}ep SSejun enupjuod jjeys -, Jo :,G00Z 1equiedas Jo Aep | oy} uo ejeuluLs] jjeys juswesiby siyy,
ATNO FTdNVXT HOH

"JOBJIUOD S]BUIWISY [[IM YOIYM JUBAT / UONBUIWIS] JO 81eq

00T 18quia)das jo Aep | 8y} uo 8210} Ojul BWOI [[eYS Juswaalby Siy],

‘ATINO F1dWv X3 SO
"90UBLLIWOD ||eys Juswaaibe ay) ajep ay) — JusWaousWwwWwo) Jo 81eq

Juswaaiby Jo uoneinqg

.99 g8H pJojaioH }8a4iS yons ON a4jua) Ajunwiwo) yans oN uesw [jeys ,a4jus) Ayunwwo), ay|
:Buiuesw Buimojjo) ayj aney jjim suoissaidxs pue spiom Buimojjo) ey} Juswaaiby Siyy uj,

‘ATINO F1dIWv X3 SO
"Juswaalbe ay) ulyum uoniadal S8ABS SIy) ‘pasn swis) Jo uoneue|dx]

suoniuyeq

‘(uonewuoyul punoibxyoeq) Juswaaibe ay} Jo uoneue|dxg

EIREY

. (48pinoid 8airies ayj},) Led puooss ayj jo ggg g&H pIojaleH
1084} sbbojg asnoH sbbojg ALIMYHD S99O0T JOr pue ped jsiiy ayj jo (/1ouno) 8y},) HSL LYH plojeisH
peoy pojeH Gg uojbuiyoolg TJONNOD LOIMLSIAd FHIHSAHOHIEIH 40 ALNNOD FHL NIIMLIS,

AINO F1dWVXT 04
"Juswealbe ay} ul yed Buye) saiued asoy) Jo (8210 palsisibal ay)) ssalppe pue sswepN

Juswaalby 0] salued

.00 Jsnbny jo Aep wC b 8y} uo spew sI INJIWIIHOV SIHL,
‘ATINO F'1dIWv X3 404
(*mojaq 89S — 9)ep JUBWBIUBWWOD 8Y) AjLuEssaoau Jou gN) ‘luswaalbe ay) Jo 81ep uons|duwod [ewio

JuswaaIby Jo 81eq

9JON

BuipeaH asne|)

“lIOVYLNOD Ol 103rdns. dnN d3dv3H 39 dTNOHS
SINH31 TVILNTLOd S3SSNIOSIAd HOIHM 1OVHLINOD FHL 40 ONINOIS FHL Ol J0ldd OLNI A343LNT FONIANOISIHHOD 11V

‘NOILITdINOD OL "dOldd S3OINGTS TVO3T A9 AaXMO3HD 39 ATNOHS
ANV AHVA NVO SLOVHINOD 11V "'S1OVHLINOD NIHLIM 3SN J04 SISNV1O d31S399NS 40 LSITV SI SIHL 310N 3ISv31d  aN

10)93g AlejunjoA pue AJlunwwo) — sbulpeaH asne|) pajsabbng }si }o9y9 jJoeijuo)

¢l XION3addV

65



09

"Pamo||o} 8g pjnoys sainpadold jeym pue saiued |je Aq 1dey 8g pjnoys spodal 1eyp

spJooay
® $8INPad0Id BuLIoNUO

‘paJinbau ale Aay) 1ey) Aouanbauy ey pue palinbal aq Aew jey; spodal Bulojuow Aue Jo s|ieyag

‘apew aq p|noys

Aay) woym 0} pue spew aq pinoys joaloid ayy jo ssaisboid ayy / 108loid ayy uo sajepdn seinbas moy Jo sjielaq
*0)o sj|iejap 10e1uo09 ‘Jabeuew joafoid si OYpp

uonewJoju 108loid

‘1ouno) a8y Aq padinbal ale jey; senled Jayjo ay) Aq papiroid 80IAI8S JO S[aAeT

spJepuelg 90IAI8S

"108l04d B8Y) puswWE pue JOJIUOW O} [IDUNOD MOJ|Ee O} pasn 8q pP|N0d — SAOQE Sy

juswdojana 19aloid

ewn
0] 8w} wouj sjuswpuswe alinbal Aew pue ue|d oioads e alinbal Aew j1ouno) ayy ouoads 199foud si Juelb J|

ue|d 109lold / ueld ssauisng

" 002 418quieydas | uo burouswiwod (spunod

paipunH auQ) 00LF JO senbayd juswiejsul Ajlypuow g ul J8pinoid 8oInes oy} o) pied aq jeys jueib ay],
AINO F1dWVX3 O

"PaJaA02al 8( }l |[IM SBOUEBISWNDIID JeYM Ul pue paldaAodal o] |Im Asuow MoH

‘(910 Aouanbauly / poylaw) pied aq 0] S Asuow MOH

1uelS) Jo A19A008Y / JusWwAed

pusuwiysiqanjad ayj Ul )Sisse 0] unoqe| po|[ixs pue sjelisjell aseyaind o} si juelb oy} Jo asodind,

ATINO F1dWV X3 40
‘pasn aq ued Asuow MOH

JuelS) Jo as

wZAX 40 Jyouaq ayj 1o G00Z 1equieydes
Aq usyoyy aspuen Ayunwiwon ayj Buiysiqinal o} papiuiwiod Ajuiof aie Jopinoid 82IAI8S 8y} pue [1ouno) 8y,

AINO F1dWVX3 O
‘op 0} puajul Juelb ay) Buialeoal uonesiuehlo ayy pue [I9UNoD ay) IBYAA

SaA08lqO pue swiy 99IAI8S
papiAoid 8q 0} S80IAIBS

- 8/us) Aunwiwo) ayj)
Joj spuny apinoid o) "', |ON ANV .Udyodyy ajusd Apunwiuwion ayj Jo juswiysiqinial ayj 4o spuny apiroid oy -,

‘ATINO F1dWvX3d S04
"ol108ds pue uleLao aq 1SNy

j10BJJUO0D JO 8sodind

SJON

BuipeaH asne|)

66



19

"109loud ayj 1o} uaalb Buipuny ayy Joj (uonduasap awos jo Ajolignd) uoniubooal salinbal (1ouUno) |

Buipuny jo Juswabpamoun oy

‘pPauIaouod
seiued || Ag pejnoexe 8q pjnoys pue Bunpum ul paldinbal 8q pjNOYS Juswpuswy pPauIeouod saljed
|e Jo Juswaalibe ay) Jnoyum Juswaaibe ay) 0] spew ag P|NOYS SjusWpUsWE OU Jey) 8jels p|noys asne|d siy |

"Juswaalbe ay) Jo sw.s)] ay) 0] uoljeleA e 1sanbal 0] saied Buimo|y

uoneuep

"SJN0J 8y} BIA 1O uojjeJjigJe 10 |enpiAlpul / Apoq
paweu e wouj uoneipsw jo diay ay} yum ba papas aq aindsip sy} [im moy — aindsip Jo jJuana ul suaddey jeypp

uonnjosay ayndsiq

‘Alessadau Ad1j0d AjlunuioddQ jenb3 s |1ouno) 0} adualaype §|

sanjiunuoddp |enbg

"salied ay) Usamiaq [BUBPLUOD palapIsuod aq O] Juswaalbe ay) Jo s|ieleq

Ajlleuspyuo)d

- P05 JO JoV/ UB 0] 8np J0 |0J)UOD 8]|qeuoSea. Jno puokaq

JuaAa Jayjo Aue pue [o)e 28] PoOy ‘WSLIOLIB) ‘Jem ‘seyu)s ‘Sjou :Buimojjo) 8y} o) pajiwil jou ng Buipnjour .,
ATNO FTdNVXT HOH

"JOBJJUOD BY) S8)BJISNI) IO 10BIIUOD 8Y) Jo souewlopad sjusAald yoliym joe ajge|josjuooun / usssalojun

alnale\ 92104

"Swie|o 8ouUeINsSUI 10 / pue s)s09 |eba| Joj [1ouno) ay) Ajluwspul 0) Aued Jayi0

Aluwapu|

‘patinbau §|

1SaJa)u| Jo uonelepaqg

"JOBJUOD BY] JO yoralq J0} 8|ge|leA. ale salpawal Jeyp)
"JOBJJUOD BU]) JO yoralq B Sa)N}IISuod JeypA

Apawiay % yoealg

"Juswealbe ay} ajeulwla) 0} buiysim saijied || Aq uaalb aq 0} palinbal 82130u JO poyjaw pue Junowy

"0)0

uswAedal ‘spoob jo dn Aiaaljop Ba papnjoul 8q OS|e p|NOYS UolBUIWIS) AlJed 1o} salpawal Auy "Hwi| awi 18S
uIyIm waopad oy aunjie ; Aouaajosul 6a |e je ji Ajes pajeulws) 8q ued Juswaalbe ay) spunolb jeym Jo sjieyaqg

‘pajeuIwld) S| Juswaalbe MoH uoneuiwIa |
"109lo0ud ay) Joj Buipuny Jo S821N0S J18YJ0 JO [IDUNOY) O} uoledllou — A|qissod
"uoloadsul Joy} [1I9UN0Y 0} JUSS 8 PINOYS Sjunodoe asay) Aouanbaly pue ayeq

"spJodal |eloueuly ajelnodoe deay 0} (J1Iouno) sy} uey} Jaylo) sailed |je 1oy Juswalinbay SJUNO22Y

SJON

BuipeaH asne|)

67



29

"peap e se 10 puey Jepun juswaaibe ay) Jo uonnoexe ay|

asne|) uoljeisany

"Juswaalbe ay) Jo swia) ay) 0} Juasuod saied ay) 1ey) buneig

wniuownsa |

‘uonew.ojur Asejjioue Buluieluod joeljuod ayy o} papuadde Aepy

se|npayos

" 10BJJU0D
ay} ojul iojus o) buiea.be ul ssyjoue Aq uodn peijes usaq aney Aued isyye Aq suonejussaidal 1o Juswivdle]s
ou jeyj pue usyoyy e.usn Apunwiwon 8y} Jo Juswysiqiniel ay) o} bunejss seied sy} usamjeq juswes.ibe
aJijus oY) Jussa.dal joeju0n) ay) ul pajetodioour A|ssaidxs SUOIPUOI pue SuLId] 8Say] Jey] salbe saiued ay|,

‘ATNO F1dNVXT H04 asne|) juawaalby ainug
‘puelbug jo sme ay} 0} 193lgns sI Juswoalby oy} 1ey] uonalpsune
‘Aled Jayjo
Aue 0] Juswoalbe ay) Jo syyouaq Bulubisse jJuswaalbe ay) 0y sanled Bunuanald palinbal aq Aew asnepo vy uawubissy
" Juswsaiby siy} Jo wis) Aue 8210jud 6661

0} 1ybL 8y} 4o Jyvusq Aue Aued piiy) Aue uo 1sjuod jjeys Juswssiby Sy} ul Buiyjou Jgnop JO 8oUBPIOAE 8y} JO,
-ATNO F1dWVX3 H04

10V (seiued payl jo syybry)
Joejjuo) 8ayj Jo uoisnjox3g

¢ 8|qeideosoe uoissiwsuel) |lBw-9 10 / pue Xej si — aoe|d aye) 0] Sl 800U Aue Jo 82IAI8S ay) MOH

SO2IJ0N JO 82IAI8S

‘a|qeol|dde J|

uonosjoid eleq

“1vUN0)
ayl Aq peuoddns suonesiueBio Jayjo JO JuUsWILISP 8yl 0] YJOM 10U [IM 10BANUOD 8Y) 01 salued Jaylo ay) 1eyl

Juswileq UoN

SJON

BuipeaH asne|)

68



€9

¥l XION3ddV

suonpesiuebin
|
| Q-1
aUsT || 5504 O (R ratel
auC 01 8UD O - ZOARA
=T |
UAASH W - 072ed
‘unoaosH 4O L c-unp
COH29 | -
T IRILE:
SAATDH B POUEr &
40m - o-fny
JeH O L -
ds1%A00
wAH I Go-deg
gvo D 90-IEI
Q0120
saje pug ¥is

0 UoJeN | ¥0Joquiaydes | Goounr | €0 YoleN | €0 YoIBIN | ¥O YOJBIN | 90 UDJEIN | GO YOIBIN | 90 YoJBN | GO UDJEIN | SO YoIBIN | 20 UOJew
Auedwo) UM [louno)
anua) BuipusLyeg eIPS Apeelg spodg 18414
1] ssoy 8uQ 0} BUQ leiny Apeay SPIH OHO3 SAAOH | Anunwwop | OVH aIvAD VAH avo

So|eaSalll] - SJUaWaaIby |9AdT 9DIAIDG
€1 XIAN3ddV

69




¥9

salpog ainjonJjseu]

SAADH 40 OIvH d®1VvAD VAH avo
| |
] ] °
- 0000¢
- 0000 <«
2
- c
00009 &
™
00008 —
- 000001
Buipuny 0000ct
[1OUNOY) 8lIYSpJ0)aIaH J8Ui0 l
S a9Jnjonijselju
00083 LE0'LL3 €653 L0V3 01183 0¥9'GZ3 Buipung oH 19430
GZr'6E3 05.'6¥3 005013 029'013 086°L0L3 0SL'v013 junowy y1is
S92IAIBS UYINOA S|IouUN0YH 1o1I81q % Auingpan
AJejunjop Joj [1ounoD |e207 JO UOIBIDOSSY uonoy Alejunjop uonoy Alejunjop xnealing
allysplojoiay 18414 Ajlunwwio) allyspJlojaioH Ajunwwon allyspJlojaioH 9OIAPY SuUazin uonesiuebip

suolnjesiueBbiQ ainjoniiselju] - SJuswaaIbYy |[9A9T] 991AIBS

70



S9

uonesiuebio
I
0
alnin4 Jno 0} 8Wo9|d
ind } PMO 00001
alua) || ssoy M|
9uQ o1 suQ0 O - 0000C
Auedwo)) eipaj\ |einy oyl W o
- 0000€ 3
U\ Apea)s Apeay O pid
[1oun0) suodg aliyspiojelaH O - 0000¥ B2
OHOTIl
aln)n) ¥ SUY SnoleAd 0000S
00009
SY1S 18430
052013 ¥SG°' L3 00S'GL3 G19'6E3 00S'v3 00S'v3 0S.°€L3 000°053 junowy
suonesiueblQ
alnin4 InQ Buipuaujeg Auedwon UIAA [1oUN0D alnyny
0] SWO0I|9AA anua) ]| ssoy auQ 0} U BIPOIN BNy Apeaig Apeay suods spiH OHOD3 Q9 SUY SNOLEBA uonesiuebiQ

Sl XION3ddV

suonesiuebiQ 19Yyj0 — Sjusawaaiby |9AdT] 9JIAIS

71



72



